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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEBR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
THERT TET 23
Turnover L]
Jewellery retail KETE 16,258,416 17,130,414 -5%
Other businesses Hib 2w 1,477,810 1,675,928 -12%
17,736,226 18,806,342 -6%
Profit attributable to equity holders AREERFAA
of the Company FE(E S5 F 643,533 1,012,257 -36%
Earnings per share BRREF
- Basic - &K 95.0 cents fli  149.4 cents 1l -36%
- Diluted -#E 95.0 cents fll  149.4 cents il -36%
Dividend per share BREE
- Interim — R 14.0 cents 1 15.0 cents 1l
— Final - RH 25.0 centsfill  44.0 cents il
Total dividend per share for the year 2EERKRERE 39.0 centsfill  59.0 cents fll
Dividend payout ratio kS & 41% 39%
Equity attributable to equity holders RRRESFAA
of the Company FE(RREZS 10,632,385 10,418,937 +2%
Equity per share B $15.7 1t $15.4 7T +2%
Turnover Return on equity
Vear ] % E 5%
F5
2019 1,478 17,736 %
2018 1,676 18,806 14
12.5%
2017 2,117 16,633 N
12
2016 2,048 16,093 \
2015 2,346 19,069 1q 9.7%
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 8.7%
HK$'M
1 Jewellery retail HKEZTE Other businesses E A7 ‘ BEET 8 =
8.2% \
6 .........
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
e e e 6.1%
F
2019 644 4
2018 1,012
2
2017 876
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

There is scanty need for me to recount here the events that transpired
in Hong Kong in the year 2019. Half a year of internal strife in the city
has laid waste to much economic assets built up over the years, not to
mention the damage to the psyche of the population. Visitor numbers
went down to a trickle, and many business hours were lost when shops
had to be shuttered for safety. Turnover in our business slumped.

In the course of the past year, it was increasingly apparent that China
and the USA are locked in a contest for supremacy and there is going
to be a lot more than the salvoes fired in the trade war. Amidst the
turmoil, China’s economy slowed its growth.

The sales growth in our Mainland operations, fueled in the main by
new stores, was not enough to offset the loss of sales in Hong Kong. In
addition, we made margin provisions on loans arising from our securities
and futures broking business. The impact on the Group was such that
total turnover 2019 decreased by 6% to HK$17.7 billion, the overall
profit attributable to equity holders had a decrease of 36% to HK$644
million.

Any sense of relief brought on by the calming down of the unrest in
Hong Kong, in January 2020, was soon overwhelmed by the onslaught
of COVID-19. Our stores in Mainland China mostly stood closed in late
January and February, and those in Hong Kong and Macau, though
open, were put on curtailed trading hours with few customers to show.
As we move into March, most of our stores outside of Hubei have
reopened but trading is slow.

Throughout the battle with the virus, we have put safety and welfare
of our staff at the forefront, affording them the discretion to work at
home or choose their hours of work. To conserve our wherewithal to
weather the storm, we have stopped most if not all procurement. To
energise our frontline, we have enabled and encouraged them to use
social media to reach out to their customers. We are happy to note
that our online shops were able to operate with minimal disruption,
ably supported by our dedicated staff of Intelligent Fulfilment Center in
Shunde.

Because of the disappearance of customer traffic in our stores, we
appealed to our landlords for rental relief based on the premise that the
rental contract was signed at a time when footfall was vastly higher.
Many have been accommodating, to various degrees, and we applaud
and thank them. A number have been downright unsympathetic,
however. In times of adversity, one knows who his friends are.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

At the time of writing it seems that we have seen the worst of the viral
outbreak in Mainland China and Hong Kong, but globally the situation
is unclear. We will maintain our vigilance over the wellbeing of our staff
and our business, and we shall poise ourselves for the resurgence when
the sky is finally clear.

| thank our staff, our shareholders and our customers for their unfailing
loyalty and support, and | wish everyone good health.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2020
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 86, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 73, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing. He has been with the Group
for over 35 years, having been the Group General Manager and the
Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. Mr. CHOW is appointed
by the Home Affairs Bureau's to its Advisory Committee on Arts
Development as the Chairman as well as the Performing Arts Committee
under the Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority as a
member. He was made an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts; and he serves as a Director of the Board of The
Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited, which is a not-for-
profit organisation. Mr. CHOW is a member of the Board of Governors
and a member of the College Council of the UOW College Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 63, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 30 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW
is an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of the
Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He is a panel
member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs Bureau,
HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a former member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government (2009-2011)
and a former council member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation
(2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the Central and Western District
Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is an honorary member of
the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and the founding President
of the Central and Western District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary
Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire Services Department.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. Dr. CHOW is also a member of the Bauhinia
Foundation Research Centre and the Hong Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 66, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an independent
non-executive director of seven other listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., Tongda Group Holdings
Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue
Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited. Mr. TING is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years of experience
in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 79, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 62, is an Executive Director of
the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director of a
number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been with the
Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the Group
Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger brother
of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing. He has experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's
key responsibilities include the marketing and staff learning and
development of the Group's jewellery business in Greater China. He is a
Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association, an Executive
Committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association
and a member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee
under the Qualifications Framework of the Education Bureau.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He is also a responsible officer approved by the
Securities and Futures Commission and serves as an independent non-
executive director of five other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited (“Chong
Hing”), Medicskin Holdings Limited, Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE is also an independent
non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding
company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 82, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 74, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong, FCPA, FCCA, FCS, FCIS, CFA, MBA,
aged 52, is the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group's
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. CHAN joined the Group in February 2020
and has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance and management. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"), the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute, and
a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is the past Chairman of ACCA Hong
Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently a member of the Professional Development
Sub-committee of ACCA Hong Kong and the Accountancy Training
Board.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 63, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 67, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China). Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over
40 years. He is well-experienced in sales management. Apart from
managing the retail operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is
also responsible for the development of operational strategies in Greater
China. He also serves as the Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.

Ms. Sandra SHEK Tsang, aged 51, is the Group's Brand Director.
Ms. SHEK is responsible for overseeing the development of the Group’s
branding, product development, brand marketing, customer service and
corporate gift business. Prior to joining the Group in 2013, she was
the General Manager of various international jewellery and accessories
brands. Ms. SHEK has over 20 years of sales operation and marketing
experience in Greater China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

After a solid first quarter in which same store sales growth (“SSSG") for
both Mainland China and Hong Kong registered an increase, the second
quarter was beset by worsening trade tension between China and the
USA. In June Renminbi turned weak while gold rallied. From then on
jewellery sales steadily softened in both Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

On the Mainland, by quarter four, with the news of a possible
trade agreement between China and the USA, consumer sentiment
rebounded.

Hong Kong, however, by the second half of 2019 was reeling as
the massive demonstration against the Extradition Bill evolved into
continuous social unrest; public services were disrupted, and shops had
had to suspend trading because of road blockage and protests. Tourist
visits dropped significantly. As tourist business accounts for about 50%
of our business in Hong Kong, SSSG dropped by 25% for the second
half of the year.

The Group's turnover for 2019 decreased by 6% to HK$17,736 million.
Provisions for impairment losses totalling HK$372 million (net of tax)
were made on loans arising from our securities and futures broking
business. Overall profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 36%
to HK$644 million.

Jewellery Retail

Jewellery retail accounted for 92% of the Group’s turnover. Comparing
to 2018, turnover decreased by 5%.

Jewellery Retail Turnover
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2018 2019 Geographical area /& Change &%)
Hong Kong and Macau &8 K 2F9 -16%
Mainland China SN +4%
Taiwan 2/& +18%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jewellery Retail (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau

Sales registered a reduction of 16% for the year at HK$6,436 million.
SSSG for the first half was +2%. The second half setback was mainly
due to the shrinkage of tourist business and high base comparing to
2018 third quarter (SSSG for 2018 third quarter was +33%).

BEEEN @RI N

HESE ()
FEREF]

2FEHERF16% % 56,436 BB E
e F¥FENREHERERA+2% 1
THFERARIERANRETHEERER
#2018 FE=FERRMEH(2018F
F-ZEREHEERAE+33%) °

Hong Kong and Macau Sales Mix

EEKAMEEAS
2018 2019 Product B
‘ 9% Gold €4
5%
. Watch F&
64%
63%

2019 1H vs 2018 1H

2019 2H vs 2018 2H

Gem-set Jewellery SEf# S
Platinum/Karat Gold 484 /K%

2019 FY vs 2018 FY

2019 F FHFE 2019 FEFF 2019 F&24F
i) (5] i)
$SSG FEHERL R 2018 F LHFE 2018 FNEFF 2018 F&4F
Gold ¥ 4% 27% -16%
Gem-set Jewellery BRI 2% -40% -21%
Overall et +2% -25% -12%

SSSG for gold and gem-set jewellery were -16% and -21% respectively
for the year. Watch continued its strong performance and achieved a
+53% SSSG. Overall, SSSG was -12% for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAWRDM

Jewellery Retail (continued) HKEZE(E)
Hong Kong and Macau (continued) EERRBFI(E)
Number of Stores
DIEEE

As at 31 Dec 2018 As at 31 Dec 2019 Net Change

2018 & R 2019 &
Store Brand 2 JE 12A31H 128318 FE
Chow Sang Sang AEE 59 61 +2
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 3 +1
BEm M 5 5 -
67 70 +3

During the year, 3 Chow Sang Sang stores, mainly in tourist districts,
were closed. 5 new stores were set up in Whampoa, Sham Shui Po,
North Point, Tsuen Wan and Tung Chung to further strengthen our
network to serve local customers.

On lease renewals, rental adjustment ranged from -45% to +9%.
Reporting on a basis prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, total shop
rental expenditure was HK$59 million or 9% less than 2018.

Capital expenditure amounted to HK$70 million, most of which was for
new openings and refitting of stores.

Mainland China

Total turnover rose 4% year-on-year to HK$9,688 million. In Renminbi
terms, total turnover rose by 9%, benefitting mainly from the opening
of new stores.

Mainland China Sales Mix

hEARHEAS

2018 2019

64%
67%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Jewellery Retail (continued) HKEZE(E)
Mainland China (continued) ;B A fE (4B )
2019 1H vs 2018 1H 2019 2H vs 2018 2H 2019 FY vs 2018 FY
2019 FL¥FE 2019 FTFHFE 2019 2 F
3] 53} 53]
SSSG A5 HEE & 2018 & FH4E 2018 FHEE 2018 F2
Gold =R +8% -3% +3%
Gem-set Jewellery BRI -12% -5% -9%
Overall =g +1% 4% -1%
Gold sales was weaker in the second half with SSSG at -3% comparing BEeHEETHERERBERARES  AE
to +8% SSSG in the first half. High gold price from June onwards might HERRA 3% WHLEXFEZRE

have deferred consumption. Gem-set jewellery showed improvement
with the second half SSSG at -5% while the first half was -12%. For the
full year, overall SSSG was -1%.

Online sales continued to grow and accounted for about 16%
(2018:15%) of our Mainland China sales. Gold products dominated the
sales mix.

HEERA+8% K6 ARSEBES L

Bt lCBETHE - BRUBERBAMK
EZ T¥FEREHERERA5% mME
LEEA-1N2% 2FEEREHELER
7%-1%0

WMEBEERHELER
16% (20184 : 15%) °

(SLCTNGS R
HEHSPNUR

Number of Stores

PIEEE
As at 31 Dec 2018 As at 31 Dec 2019 Net Change
72018 2019 &

Store Brand D5 g 12 A31H 12A831H B
Chow Sang Sang B2 482 574 +92
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 23 25 +2
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 1 7 +6
506 606 +100

At the end of the year, there were a total of 606 stores located in 135 FEREAEELXBE6R DG L1351

cities for the Group. New stores numbered 120 and there were 20
closings. Of the new stores, 69 were set up in shopping malls.

With new openings and the refitting of 43 stores, together with the on-
going construction of the Intelligent Fulfilment Center in Shunde, capital
expenditure came to RMB300 million.

Taiwan
There was no significant change in the results from the prior year.
Wholesale of Precious Metals

Turnover decreased 10% to HK$1,436 million. Operating profit dropped
by 59% to HK$6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities and Futures Broking

Despite some improvement in the fourth quarter, the market momentum
for 2019 was weak with average daily turnover falling below HK$100
billion. Our turnover also decreased, resulting in a drop of commission
income by 30%. The Group made provisions totalling HK$372 million
(net of tax) on loans made to margin clients.

In 2016, we entered into a joint venture (“JV") agreement with Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. to form a securities company in the PRC
under the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangement (CEPA) framework to explore the opportunities in China.
The JV was subject to government approval and granting of license.
Owing to change in regulations, it has been agreed not to proceed with
the JV arrangement in March 2020.

Investments

Properties
The Group holds various properties that are being used for offices,
stores and factories. Rental income from investment properties
amounted to HK$12 million, which is less than 1% of the Group's
turnover.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEC”)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 3,561,800 shares of HKEC,
received as distribution from the reorganisation of the then exchanges
in year 2000. The amount remained unchanged throughout the year.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its jewellery
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,028
million (2018: HK$1,303 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates
falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$6,774 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$881 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2019, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$3,992 million (2018:
HK$4,080 million).

As at 31 December 2019, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,217 million and HK$1,474 million respectively, most
of which were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. The
weighted average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The
gearing ratio was 25.3%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion
loans of HK$2,691 million as a percentage of total equity of HK$10,632
million. The current ratio of the Group was 3.0. The decrease in current
ratio is due to the recognition of the current lease liabilities of HK$573
million upon the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 32% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2019, increased from 21% as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
and cross currency swaps, to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at
31 December 2019, the borrowing denominated in New Taiwan dollar
amounted to NT$100 million.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, listed equity investments of HK$784 million
(2018: HK$634 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$1,300
million and had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to recruit and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of employees of the Group
was 10,576. There were 1,576 staff in Hong Kong and Macau and
8,823 staff in Mainland China. During the year ended 31 December
2019, total staff costs (excluding Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$1,588 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

The first three weeks into 2020 was promising with strong pre-Chinese
New Year sales from Mainland China, and continued improvement
against previous months in Hong Kong with social unrest less intense.
Unfortunately, the positive trend was quickly derailed by the outbreak
of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) in the last week of January.

To combat the spreading of COVID-19, local governments locked up
cities, restricted travel, and told people to stay home. In Mainland
China, due to the closure of department stores and shopping malls, up
to 77% of our stores suspended operation in the first two weeks of
February. The SSSG in Mainland China and in Hong Kong and Macau
for the months of January and February 2020 were -45% and -44%
respectively. However, approaching the end of March, over 95% of our
stores in Mainland China are operating, albeit with curtailed business
hours. In Hong Kong and Macau, the majority of our stores remained
open throughout but with shortened hours. We have assiduously
negotiated with our landlords for relief in shop rentals and have been
granted reductions of February and March rents over a wide range
starting from zero.

The impact on our business is alarming. However, our short-term and
long-term funding sources are well established to provide liquidity
during this difficult period. Our gold inventory, being highly liquid, will
provide some back-up cover.

We have taken measures to reduce spending by freezing headcounts,
optimising staffing where possible, delaying new store openings and re-
prioritising investment spending such as refitting of existing stores.

In Hong Kong, we will selectively refit some of the strategic stores to
refresh the image and we will continue to vigorously negotiate with our
landlords for rental relief.

COVID-19 has spanned the globe. The economy will eventually recover
from this epidemic. How long it takes remains to be seen. Domestic
consumption will be a key to restart the economic growth which is
important to the stability of the country. Our network of stores, though
already fairly extensive, can still be improved by deeper penetration
of certain cities, and by siting more in malls rather than department
stores. Our effort in market segmentation is spearheaded by brands like
EMPHASIS, which specialises in bold designs, and MINTYGREEN, which
caters for fans of daily wear jewellery. With the economic climate in
mind, we plan to continue opening stores judiciously, and limiting the
number to say 30. Our Personalised Jewellery Service, already bringing
in around 5% of the diamond sales in 2019, will be one of the most
important pieces in our toolkit. Our online business will be further
strengthened by closer integration with our offline stores.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, wholesale of precious metals, and securities and futures
broking. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 62 to 180.

An interim dividend of HK14.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
24 September 2019. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK25.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 19 June 2020.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group's business are provided
in the Chairman’s Message on pages 3 to 4 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 16 of this annual report. Details
of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain financial
key performance indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on
page 2.

An account of the Group's key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
41 to 53.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
26 to 40.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set

LERERE

TXEIAEBBEREMBRFELEA
ERE BENBBZHZ(DHEALE
BEAMBRELIEEBEREN IR -

out below. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated BV TERCEZGETBRE 2 —
financial statements. oo
Results
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FHET TET TET
Turnover ]
Jewellery retail KETE 16,258,416 17,130,414 14,516,326 14,045,322 16,723,183
Other businesses Hfth 575 1,477,810 1,675,928 2,117,055 2,047,215 2,346,074
17,736,226 18,806,342 16,633,381 16,092,537 19,069,257
Operating profit Eovingl 883,291 1,322,406 1,132,949 996,055 1,367,603
Share of profits of i NG|
associates, net A A - 245 4,550 4,207 454
Profit before tax BR 7% A1 A 883,291 1,322,651 1,137,499 1,000,262 1,368,057
Income tax FTiSH: (239,758) (310,394) (261,081) (258,086) (237,737)
Profit for the year AARIERFAA
attributable to equity FE(EE R F
holders of the Company 643,533 1,012,257 876,418* 742,176 1,130,320*
Assets and Liabilities
BEEREE
As at 31 December
R12A831H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FHET FHET FET FET
Total assets BEE 16,236,438 13,838,036 13,670,115 12,201,400 12,011,365
Total liabilities BafE (5,604,053) (3,419,099) (3,545,040) (3,163,502) (2,933,450)
10,632,385 10,418,937 10,125,075 9,037,898 9,077,915

* Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2017 included a gain of HK$245,501,000 and
HK$113,948,000, respectively, on the disposal of shares in Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2019 included provisions for impairment losses totaling
HK$372,000,000 (net of tax) made on loans arising from our securities

and futures broking business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,132,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group's properties are set out on pages 181 to 184 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, there was no equity-
linked agreement entered into by the Company during the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the year are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the factors in determining the dividend payment of the
Company as well as the procedures on declaring and recommending the
dividend payments. The Company intends to distribute between 30% to
40% of the Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its
shareholders. The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate
from time to time.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,894,067,000, of
which HK$169,359,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 63% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 37%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Mr. LEE Ka Lun*

Dr. LO King Man*

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO King Man
shall retire by rotation at the 2020 annual general meeting (the “2020
AGM") pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws. All the retiring Directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 5 to 9 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 which is still in force.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long positions:

BEFRE

BEARRERBAIRFEEREXZE
AT ARRSRESSI A RABER
FRARSRTBRBXEEMEBB LA
SXREECHBEBAKET BEH
KARBEERENBE - HE2019F
12A31BIEFE ARFEAREEES
ke BELHAHERABRCZEER
SHBEETRR

EERR0 2 EH

R2019F 128318 SEENARQAH
HEBEE(TE A(EHFRBERN)E
XVE)BEBITRAS  B(EFEHLBEK
HI)EE 352 AR RIBFIRTFZ B RETAR
B RBRBELEMBETAERTETELRRS
RZESFRI([MZ2ESFAI]) MBRARF K

ERBAXSHARLT(HRH)) AR
ZHESIT -

"R

Number of shares held

KREE
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
BRESN
Name of Directors e BAERE ZBER DRER EREARR CH Aotk
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing KB &4 - - - 136,271,595 " 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing FHKBE 13,411,680 70398 7 62,544,316 7 - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BrkLE 28,681,104 52,8007 14244316 % 32,616,000 ? 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RmEEE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note:

M Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of those persons in the issued
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

ESRERODES 2 ER

ADRRFREMEEBERTINESR
FEBBCEBRFHTFLAFARAT
By skiEznim B sk 2 A - KR EFITHE
EAZSERN - AR A S E AN E
AALRHRSTEFAREMEMEABER
BEHSEM -

TERRREMBATARG RAEBRG 2
B

M2019E 128318 BB A RHE
GHINE33615  RARETRE Z#ERZS
M srNBEE RN B BITRAAL 2
BT

Long positions: HE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
£ 5% EREE Bok
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 17.71
ERfFEA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of 62,544,316 % 9.23
Controlled Corporation
ERRBAARZEHAG 2 Ex
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,052,447 © 7.98
REEEA
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 “ 7.96
RERFEHR A A E&FEA
Notes: Vi

(1) 136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee
of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the

interests in the Company through the following companies:

Name of companies

RElEE

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.
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M

VNG 3
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kA A
120,000,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2)

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

48,300,000 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited, a
company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Winston
CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the beneficiaries. The trustee
of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and, accordingly, it was deemed to
have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 62,614,714 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
(Singapore) Ltd, Schroder Investment Management Limited and Schroder
& Co (Asia) Limited, held 33,129,447 shares, 16,269,000 shares,
4,592,000 shares and 62,000 shares in the Company respectively, and was
accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by the
aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Event after the Reporting Period
Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting period
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "HKEx ESG Guide”). The main purpose of this report
is to disclose the Group's current management approach, strategies
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2019. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our jewellery retail and manufacturing
operations in Greater China. ESG performance indicators reported in
this report cover our main operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
unless specified otherwise. Revenue contribution and the associated ESG
impacts are the primary factors in defining the reporting boundary. The
operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China contributed the majority
of our total revenue.

The Group follows all four Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide,
namely materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance, in preparing
the ESG report. This report prioritises and details the issues deemed
important from the perspectives of our stakeholders and business. In
addition to policy and programme descriptions, performance data of the
current and previous years and corresponding narratives are provided
for more comprehensive account of our ESG management. We adopt
the same methodologies to derive the disclosed data unless otherwise
specified.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group's ESG strategy and
reporting while our management is responsible for monitoring and
managing ESG-related risks as well as the effectiveness of our ESG risk
management and internal control systems.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has established various means to communicate with internal
and external stakeholders comprising employees, customers, investors,
suppliers, trade associations, institutions and charitable organisations
that we support. The channels used to communicate with these
stakeholders include online questionnaires, interviews, feedback forms
and courtesy visits.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Analysis

The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders periodically to
evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in an ongoing manner. It has
conducted a focused stakeholder engagement exercise, with the purpose
to identify material aspects within different subject areas. Stakeholders
were invited to assess the importance of various ESG aspects with
reference to the HKEx ESG Guide. The issues deemed material were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board and management for their relative
materiality and priorities.

The result of the exercise prioritised ESG subject areas and aspects in

EZ 1t
AEETERRAFNEOREARETGE
RE HelERZENERN - AKH
ERMEETTEHRBINEEEY &
ERTRNSBEFHNESERNZE -
RAPRBROERBERMARE HER
BRIESINERE  HEREABHRRE
ZERMFLFE HESEREEER
AMEREREENEREREL

AMERBBEEELEAFBRTIARERR

the following order:

BRNRE HELERER

Subject Area
TEHE

Most Material Aspects within the Subject Area
ETVRAEENSE

Social — Operating practices
e - 2ETH

Social = Employment and labour practices
e - ERRSITA

Environmental
RIE

Social = Community

HE -t

Ensuring service and product quality

RRHLERE R

Protecting customer data

REEPEH

Providing a safe working environment
RIEEL2TIERER
Ensuring employees’ occupational safety and health

RREENBELEEER

Energy and wastewater management
R R EEKERE

Contribution to community development

HEERNER

While we strive for overall balance in the disclosure of the Group’s ESG
initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on issues which are
considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed
are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the
presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards; and (c)
conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by the
Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong and
Shunde. Workmanship inspection is conducted at several stages on all
products as they go through the supply chain. With the stringent quality
assurance process, there were no records of products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons during the year (2018:
Nil).

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising and
labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Trade Descriptions Ordinance in Hong Kong and Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Moreover, in conformance with
the Group's Code of Conduct, management has systems in place to
ensure that intellectual property rights, both our own and of other
parties, are observed and respected in our business dealings. While
complying with the Trade Marks Ordinance in Hong Kong, we also
adhered to the Trademark Law and Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China.

The Group attaches importance to the interests of our customers
in the context of applicable legal provisions, including the Sale of
Goods Ordinance in Hong Kong, Product Quality Law and Protecting
Consumers’ Rights and Interests Law of the People’s Republic of
China. Should there be any enquiries or complaints, the Group has a
dedicated team of customer relations personnel for quick response.
Customers can reach the team via service hotlines, LIVE CHAT and social
media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, WeChat and Instagram.
In addition, all shop staff are trained to handle queries on products,
maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through the
proper channels are logged and documented. 92 product- and service-
related complaints were received during the year as compared to 78 in
2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Customer Data Protection

The Group maintains a database of customers. We have policies
and procedures that ensure compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong
Kong and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) of the European
Union, which govern the collection, use, retention and protection
of the customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain a minimal
amount of their personal details in the database. The database is well
protected both on policy and technological terms. Even within the
Group, customer data are released strictly on a need-to-know basis,
and the same will not be released without prior consent to outside
parties or even to units within the Group that are not the original data
collectors. Relevant details of our privacy policy are readily available on
our website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the highest best
practice principles in the trade. During the supplier selection process,
we not only consider the infrastructure, production capacity and market
reputation of the potential suppliers, but also their commitment in
compliance with legal, ethical and social aspects.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their goods. All materials and finished goods are
monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product Responsibility and
Service Quality” and only those that passed the tests are accepted.
Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated management and
high performance on ESG aspects, relevant risks arisen from the supply
chain are mitigated and managed. Suppliers of substandard goods
and materials are subject to a system of warnings, temporary or even
permanent blocking of orders. Suppliers are similarly monitored for the
timeliness of their delivery.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers in order to avoid the risks inherent in over-reliance on
suppliers. The Group also supports fair competition when selecting
potential suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations such
as the Competition Ordinance in Hong Kong and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Bid Invitation and Bidding. This commitment is
communicated with the procurement staff in the procurement and
supply chain management policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Anti-corruption

In compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery in Mainland
China, our employees are required to comply with the rules stipulated
in our Employee Handbook (the “Handbook”), which provide for
definitions of permissible and impermissible giving and receiving of
advantages and gifts. Employees are required to report receipts and
subsequent disposal of gifts. Our employees are also required to follow
the Group's Code of Conduct, which defines appropriate methods in
handling conflict of interests. In addition, the Group has implemented
the Prevention of Money Laundering Policy, which spells out the
principles, work and reporting mechanism in relation to criminal activity.

The management has arranged trainings to employees on their expected
conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of corruption
or bribery within the workplace. Under the whistleblowing policy,
employees are protected if they submit signed reports on suspicious
activities. During the year, there were no reported cases of corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering (2018: Nil).

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and
relationship building initiatives have always been important to our
business. The Group is proactive in adopting best practices for human
resource management to cope with the ever-changing business
environment. In recognition of the performance, the Group received
2019 AmCham’s CHRMA HR Best Practice Premium Innovation Pioneer
Award.

Employment

The Group observes the Hong Kong's Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance and Mainland China’s
Employment Promotion Law. Being an equal opportunities employer,
the Group and its management embrace diversity in its workforce and
ensure that the employees are not discriminated against due to their
ethnicity, age, gender, marital status, religion or belief.

Complying with the Employment of Children Regulations in Hong Kong,
Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors, the use of child labour is
strictly prohibited by the Group. Human Resources Department verifies
candidates’ identity through checking their identity documents as well
as relevant certificates of proof. Similarly, forced labour is not tolerated.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with its
Code of Conduct, which stipulates the Group’s value and expectations
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The
document is available on the Group’s intranet.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, including the Hong Kong's Employment Ordinance and
Minimum Wage Ordinance, and Mainland China’s Labour Law, Social
Insurance Law and Provisions on Minimum Wages, the Group maintains
an open and standardised framework for employment, salary review
and promotion. Apart from basic salary, employees are rewarded with
performance-based bonuses. Benefits such as paid vacation leave and
insurance are commensurate with, or better than local practices and
legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully communicated to the
employees through the Handbook.

To strengthen overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group, the Group has introduced a mobile application
“CChat”. The application allows employees to receive updates on
corporate and training information, as well as personal exchanges.

Management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has various committees established to ensure the
employees have a safe and healthy working environment and to further
strengthen the implementation of relevant initiatives at divisional level.
Safety risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and
managed with corresponding preventive measures. Monthly committee
meetings are held to closely monitor our occupational health and safety
performance as well as conducting regular safety inspections. Safety-
and health-related awareness building trainings are conducted for the
benefit of all staff.

We complied with all the relevant laws and regulations related to
providing safe environment at all locations of operations and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, including the Hong Kong's
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation, as well as Work
Safety Law and Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites of the People’s Republic of China. We
had zero work-related fatality in 2017 to 2019 and 476 lost days due
to work-related injury in 2019 (2018: 459.5). Follow-up work had been
carried out immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar events in the
future. We had also drawn our employees’ attention to the incident so
as to heighten their awareness of occupational safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel and multi-
brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the design and
execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training programmes
for new and current employees, which cover topics such as product
knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill, store marketing
and team management, property security and risk management, and
occupational safety. All these programmes are designed to support
and upskill both online and offline employees of different ranks and
responsibilities. Apart from face-to-face training, on-site coaching is
also a crucial part of the training programmes. In order to promote
continuing education of employees, the Group has set up an online
platform, “Channel T", to provide interactive communication between
trainers and employees on all aspects related to our business.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualification or advanced studies
for specific roles and caters to their specific training needs by third-party
professional training. The Group and its management are dedicated to
the continuous development of our employees’ capabilities and we value
the personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our best
talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.

Environment

The Group has issued an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group fulfills its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible reusable cups are provided for drinking.
Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their private life. The Group
has established Environmental Policy, Carbon Reduction Method for
Implementing Environmental Protection, which provides guidelines to
mitigate greenhouse gas emissions, promote efficient use of energy, and
handle non-hazardous waste. The Group has also formulated Guidelines
for Handling and Discharging Effluent and Flue Gas, which delineates
the proper disposal and monitoring procedures for hazardous waste.
The commitment to the environment is further communicated to the
employees through the Group’s Code of Conduct.

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and were not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on our Group. We summarise our efforts in managing energy and
resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in the paragraphs
below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and seizes
opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the Group.
We have standardised office, factory and even shop lighting (when
feasible) with energy saving lights and LED lights. Billboard and exterior
lighting at street level stores are controlled by timer. In addition, indoor
temperature is maintained at an optimal, comfortable level to conserve
energy.

We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External Lighting
organised by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing to
switching off shop lightings by 11 p.m. To foster our employees’
awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy
conservation are also disseminated on our intranet.

Where possible, such as at the purpose-built Shunde plant, savings on
air-conditioning are achieved by taking measures to mitigate the heating
effect of the afternoon sun, to reduce heat generation by eliminating
excess lighting, and to isolate furnaces and other heat and emission
dissipating equipment from room air.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered by
the management as part of the design specifications in the erection
of the Shunde plant; they will be so considered for any building
construction in future.
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Intensity
(Gigajoule (GJ) or
Tonnes /
HK$1m Turnover)
BE
Total Consumption* (?JE%\EEWE/
Ryl forginly
Type of Resource Unit RERR 1ERRTERE)
ERER By 2018 2019 2018
Megawatt Hour (MWh) _ B
N KRB 23,868 22,725
Electricity
Energy Gigajoule (GJ)
acm FkER 85,923 81,811
5.4 4.9
Fuel' Gigajoule (GJ)
Water Freshwater Tonnes
K ok g 110,135 103,905 6.8 6.1

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas and liquefied
petroleum gas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Energy conversion factors used for LPG and natural gas are from the
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries by National Development and
Reform Commission. Energy consumption of towngas was calculated
based on the formula provided by The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited.

Our total energy, water consumption and greenhouse gas emissions
increased between 2018 and 2019 as we scaled up our manufacturing
operations and opened more shops. Nevertheless, our fuel usage in
2019 dropped by about 16% in comparison with that in 2018, as a
result of the gradual replacement of blowtorch which uses towngas
with vacuum ingot casting machines that run on electricity to melt
gold. During the year, our Xi'an Manufacturing Plant also established
charters to avoid energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as
added an inverter and repurposed used water in our manufacturing
process to save the resources. We will keep track of our energy and
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water consumption and regularly review the effectiveness of our current WA NE—SHEBRMES YR - &
initiatives to further improve our performance in energy and water use MEKER R EREY R o
as well as greenhouse gas emissions.
Intensity
(Tonnes of
Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e) /
HK$1m Turnover)
RE
P 7\ —_ 2 h B
Scope of Greenhouse Total Eg%?%';g: (“méiﬂ:ﬁz;z(
Gas Emissions Unit 1ERBLE
BERBHENEE By 2019 2018 2019 2018
Scope 1 - Direct Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e) 87 103
HE - ERELRERBHENE NS EE
0.9 0.8*%*
Scope 2 - Indirect Greenhouse Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Gas Emissions Equivalent (tCO2 ) 14,264 13,622**
#E2 - HELERBHENE Nk =
*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number Y B FEEIRBELCEEY
**  figures related to Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions in 2018 were ** o 0I18FHE2C BRERBHMEBH

recalculated with the emission factors in China’s Regional Grid Average
CO, Emission Factors in 2012 to keep the calculation method consistent
with that for 2019

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AELEESEHRBAERRAA

F AR (EF(2012 F o H] [ 15 E AT F 15
ZEIERHKAFIEFEE - LR
2019 FRGTEFE—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are
owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for stationary
combustion. The data were calculated based on Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong and the
World Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese
Cities (Pilot Version 1.0).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are a consequence of
the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or controlled
by another entity (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. The data were
calculated based on the default factors provided by electricity providers in
Hong Kong, such as Power Assets, CLP and The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited. The emissions by electricity purchased in China were
calculated based on the emission factors in China’s Regional Grid Average
CO, Emission Factors in 2012.

Wastewater Management

The Group's major use of water occurs at its plants in the course of
manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the plants in Shunde and Hong
Kong, there is an onsite facility for neutralisation, deionisation and
sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to
discharge into the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled
by licensed operators. At the smaller plants, wastewater is put in safe
storage for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals. Our
operation complies with the Water Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong
Kong, and the Law of People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution.
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Total Volume of Effluent Discharged*

Type of Emission Unit BEKEERAEE >
BrHCER B 2019 2018
Wastewater from Jewellery Manufacturing Tonnes 43,831 36,773**
KRERUEEE 2K 17

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number B FEEEREBNCEEY

** figure is adjusted as a result of aligning the data collection methodology ** - TR K E L BIFEE

among the manufacturing plants

Compared with 2018, the Group discharged more wastewater due
to increased manufacturing and production activities during the year.
We will continue to monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to
ensure it is discharged appropriately and responsibly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products. Customers
will find our boxes useful for storing other items if not used for their
jewellery. It is ingrained into our culture to reuse suitable containers
and boxes for transportation. As a recognition of our continuous
efforts in waste reduction, the plant and laboratory of the Group were
bestowed the Wastewi$e Certificate (Excellence Level) by Hong Kong
Green Organisation Certification. Compared to 2018, fewer packaging
materials were used and distributed in general due to reduction in sales
volume during the year. The Group will continue to study possible ways
to avoid undue and unnecessary use of packaging materials and recycle
whenever appropriate.

B (#)

BEEYEE
AEERREEBRRN S —EH DR
B -AREGRAERIEREANERE
K- AEERANENS KA FRRKE
oy BENAESFEACRERSE RN
BRERRERABENTHE LA T TRR

{FIRR T E R 3L o TR BE YD T E
WFEZHBEXEE  FEENTIHNE

BREEG[ESGOHMERE I THREE
Z (F84&7) - B2018FE ML - ARE
WNEERD BB FERAMDOENBEN
B D o REBBEERE —LATH
EBeBERTLNEMERBEDE
WS EEE R EETE Y -

Amount of Material Used*

Type of Packaging Material Unit MBREHE
BEMEER By 2019 2018
Paper Box Tonnes 414 424
e W

Jewellery Pouch Tonnes 1 12
INRER W

Paper Bag Tonnes 176 177
LY W

Others (e.g. plastic, leather, wood, and etc.)  Tonnes 25 29
Hipkt (FImER - K& - AME) i

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * HAFEEIRBELZEY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

There are other measures for small savings but heightened awareness.
To cut down the use of paper cups, all staff members are encouraged to
use glass and cups for their tea and water; and wherever feasible guests
are served with those as well. To reduce the use of printing paper, the
Group and its management require departments to check out their own
paper and record total usage. There are guidelines to encourage the use
of email and e-chat for company business. Employees receive notices to
check online their salary statements in lieu of paper slips.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for several years and recycled resources used in
our operations. All recyclables are collected and handled by recognised
recycling organisations.

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices. The waste handling and disposal comply
with Hong Kong's Waste Disposal Ordinance, Waste Disposal (Chemical
Waste) (General) Regulation and Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid
Waste.

The Group endeavours to reduce the use of hazardous materials
wherever feasible. As an example, during the year the plant in Hong
Kong has changed its electroforming processes to use non-cyanide
chemicals. Overall, hazardous waste is always handled by qualified
contractors in compliance with applicable local laws.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

The following tables outline waste which is materially generated and
recycled in our operations. Common office materials such as paper and
toner cartridges are also included.

RE ()
BEEYEHE(E)
TEBARERBATREE REK 2 E

2y VYEBE-—RRLAEMHMARR
E}Ifﬂm

Type of Amount of Waste Generated
Hazardous Waste Unit BRERYELE
REBERVESR B 2019 2018
Highly Acidic Waste Tonnes 7.0 6.5*
Sliqedz3y) 7

Others (e.g. waste with lead, inorganic Tonnes 7.5 3.0

cyanide, mercury, organic solvent)
HibEEy (flnateEy  ERELCmED - W
KR~ BHIRRER)

* figure of highly acidic waste in 2018 is restated. From 2019 onwards,

O 208FBEMENIHFEES F

all highly acidic waste in Shunde is handled by qualified third party. For 20198 - {2 B mEE L EY 5 5

comparability, the 2018 figure also included the amount of highly acidic BEBE=FEE FIEME 2018

waste generated by Shunde Laboratory which was originally left out FHFINEENEEEREELZ BEIE

because of reporting boundary V& - ZEBEARE R YR BET

REHAEBIERIGTEA
Amount of Waste**
ERYE **

Type of 2019 2018
Non-Hazardous Waste Unit Generated Recycled  Generated Recycled
BEBREMER By EXE B U EE EE
Paper Tonnes 46 19 52 8
i W
Toner Cartridge Pieces 3,889 748 3,960 1,101
ma {&
General Waste Tonnes 37 - 51 -
—RREEEY) 7]

**  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

In comparison with last year, more hazardous waste was generated
during the year as a result of increased production activities and
replacement of the existing solution tanks in transition to cyanide-
free production technique. Meanwhile, the Group has made progress
in generating less non-hazardous waste. We will continue to promote
waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in our operations
to improve resource effectiveness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters, to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde plant has
airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area. We
complied with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and
Law of People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development, and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for several years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group donated to a number of organisations
including The Salvation Army, Young Entrepreneurs Development
Council, St. James' Settlement People’s Food Bank, Yan Chai Hospital
and Yan Qi Tong.

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts and the City University of Hong Kong.

Air emissions are not material to the Group's jewellery manufacturing and
retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of
HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations for
youngsters, elderly and the environmental protection. For example,
we have organised visits to elderly to show our love and care, youth
empowerment programmes to support the younger generation’s
personal growth, and volunteering work to clean the environment
and promote environmental protection. To encourage participation by
our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and encourages interested
employees to become volunteers. Employees are eligible to apply
for volunteer leave, which further encourages the participation of
meaningful charitable work.

Governance

The Group recognises the importance of good governance above and
beyond compliance with regulatory requirements. The Group may from
time to time be subject to changes in applicable laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where the Group conducts operations. Such matters
could have an adverse impact on our ease and freedom of operation,
financial well-being and the results of our business. Accordingly,
compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular those that have significant
impact on the Group. The management is responsible for ensuring that
the conduct of business is in conformity with all applicable laws and
regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees. The
Company has complied throughout the year 2019 with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except
for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code and which is
explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, of whom three Executive Directors
(“EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEC").

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 5 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules
and therefore the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election in annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Code and the
Company's bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as
follows:

>
mR
¢
off

B2 (@)

ARBCHRA LR ATz Eh
BOANESETESFRZNEET ([
TR AERARARIEFTETESFR S
ZITRTR - ARAEHREEEEENE
BT TERITZER -

PREFCEARR FARSH—BHE
STRESTRIFTEL R RE -

HEETRBIAKREZABHES  TEE
SFREETAFT L 2 EmMAEESI((Em

maEsESl ) °

EFCHRERER
ARBFENESTRUKMEELTHA
REMBEAEERE CERERR  UHER
HEBTERBREEREAER -
FRNEZ2AREEXRER  UEBERKE
MRE 2 B R e - W ARAR AR
RE 2z EAaE - BT

(Note)

Training

Name of Directors e B3
Executive Directors: BITES !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing B E v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing R B v
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE v
Non-executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRELE v
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam Y Virde v
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FRETAE v
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRI )8 4
Dr. LO King Man ESNEL v
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung B ELE v

Note:

The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending online trainings,
briefings, seminars and workshops, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company's
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2019 are

>
V3
mR
¢
S
off

ESNHELE

REZFHRN2019FARTHNESTSNE
EZE29F  UWRBRBEFRENLE

set out as follows: oW
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRLERY/BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Directors E=fg E28 EREEE HMEEE REREE RREFAE
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing Kk &

Chairman and Group General Manager TEEEE B 4/4 - - - 17
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing RSB 3/4 - - n 171
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Brmik

Group Deputy General Manager 25558 4/4 - - - 17
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 4/4 22 7 - 17n
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ENIZ it 4/4 22 /1 11 0
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUFHTES :

Mr. LEE Ka Lun PRERE

Chairman of the three Committees CHZEEECEE 474 22 1/1 1/1 17
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BREE: 44 20 1/1 i o1
Dr. LO King Man ESXEL 4/4 20 i i "
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung Gt 44 20 1 N "

- The Director is not a member - BEyHHE

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
HKEC.

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group's
consolidated financial statements, oversee the Group's financial
reporting systems, internal control and risk management procedures and
the relationship with the external auditor. Members possess appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AELEESEHRBAERRAA

@

REERERRHAEETERTEEN
m@RAEEEANED - AARBERRE

RUERR -

EEZEE

ESeH-AZBexk  DHRERZ
B HMZESRREZBE  HiH
BE S E SN AR B KB K2 A o

ERZRE
ERZESIRRARERARERAY
BoE<BEE EEAKENKERS
B AMEEREREERFF KRB
BRBMzEE ZEERBEEAKBLT
RAMEZABEEXER 8t UEHRE
Ko

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

In 2019, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting principles and
practices, development in accounting standards and associated impacts
on the Group, risk management issues, audit findings, compliance,
strategy summary and financial reporting matters, and the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
Committee discussed the above matters, where appropriate, with
management and external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board for approval on the remuneration policies and packages for
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management and staff bonus scheme; and reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group’s corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

In determining the Board composition, the Committee will consider a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and process in relation to
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to
ensure the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

o character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and experience that are relevant to the business and
corporate strategy of the Group;

the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and assessment of the
independence of the candidates; and

commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.

Upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new director, the
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Group and the
Committee should then make recommendation to the Board. For
any person nominated by shareholder(s) for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine the eligibility of such candidate, and thus make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/
or the Board should review the overall contribution and service made
by the retiring director to the Group, and consider whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed re-election
of director at the general meeting.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed the
independence of the INEDs, and make recommendation to the Board
on the nomination of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING
Leung Huel and Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung for re-election as Directors
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 31 May 2019. The Committee considered that an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

In 2019, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Written Internal Guidelines, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and the disclosure in this
report.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54
to 61 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/payable for 2019 were as follows:

Audit B
Taxation %
Others Hit

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate risk management
and internal controls are in place to safequard the Group’'s assets
and manage risks. The Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AELEESEHRBAERRAA

42/

>
mR
¢
off

HHER (&)

SR

REE 2 BAUIMNEZBEN LK G 5HRDE T
FISASBSRA M BRE ZRRATER
AEHESLIE61 BEZBURBMBER -

=

EECEMLKETMERMZ2ETE
- BEBRERERL - UEENERESR
TeBREBERE FTEREHERERLT
ZONBRZEIAD o K GET AN E BTN 2019
FRECBRBREN EMAEEERN
T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
4,063 3,872
1,555 757
1,955 451
7,573 5,080
EREERABES
ESERARRASEERARARERR

NEER UREAKEEEREERA
2 EFERERTEAREERADEE
BERS - BERRIEF I RBERREL
BARHMAERE  YERERRZRKLE
RERERAKER T ARMRE

BB EE
EREREZRTEEBERENGEN 5t
BERIAEDY  BeESBFORRKRETH
Al oA ARG Y BEIERER - B
RREERERMS  ER PR AET
BB VB R E Rl SRR N EE A B R
%o BIEREYHIRELIRBANBERGETE
SHE - BINREMS| BBEREAEE
HBEREEAERZAFEEABNERE
RERE—ED o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as follows:

AEFHH T B R T EERFE
W

o Retail market suffers from the uncertainties in the global economic
and political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow and increase customer loyalty via
product and brand differentiation

e The Group's operations will be affected by multiple risk factors
related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery, wholesale of
precious metals, and securities and futures broking. Policies and
procedures are designed to minimise the risks

e Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks

o Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements

o TEMBXEREERBUSRENN
T AREBHHEEBRAY
2 -NEERREBEMNMEER
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i
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ERE B RBRARIEZ SRR

o ERUBEAREREERBERZFE
N AR A MR IS 42

Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide the assurance
for the compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial
report and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realisation of development
strategy of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

KEMEEZEENFELBEUT
57 -

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different aspects
of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit Committee

o All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled, and
verification and cross-checking with source documents procedures
are in place

o Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities and futures broking business and wholesale of precious
metals

o Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on a
regular basis

o Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review

o Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems

o The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorised staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group

o EERZERURGEFETRETS
THEZ  YRERZEGREMA
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B WHIRTRBEABERMNES
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AN

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’'s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
shops, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.
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Corporate Communication (continued)

Investor communication

Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Company
disseminates timely information on its website to investors and
consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group’s intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group's strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

s
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEHEFTPROMESN

Net realisable value of inventories

FREZ 2% FE

The Group manufactures and sells jewellery products,
which are subject to changing consumer demands and
fashion trends. Significant judgement was required to
assess the appropriate level o? inventory provision for
these jewellery products which might be sold below cost.
This took into account factors that included but were
not limited to, economic outlook, sales forecasts and the
forecast market value for the jewellery products.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value
during the current year and the carrying amount
of inventories (net of inventory provision) as at 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$11,790,000 and
HK$8,932,514,000, respectively.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Valuation of investment properties

REWFEIE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties
in Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which were
valued at HK$333,026,000 as at 31 December 2019.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group’s investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We reviewed the bases adopted by the Group for its
inventory provision policy with reference to historical
inventory losses, and evaluated whether the inventory
provision was made in accordance with the policy. We
obtained an understanding of management’s processes
for the initial identification of slow moving or obsolete
jewellery products. We also assessed the inventory
provision by comparing the selling prices of the jewellery
products to their costs.

In addition to the above, an independent gemologist
was engaged by the Group to assess the net realisable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2019. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologist, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologist, we
also evaluated the net realisable value with reference to
independently published sales prices.
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also assessed the related disclosures in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEHEFTPROMESN

Impairment assessment on receivables arising from
securities and futures brokin

BER RS SRR R BT

As at 31 December 2019, gross receivables arising from
securities and future broking and the related credit
loss allowance amounted to HK$1,030,898,000 and
HK$445,668,000, respectively.

The assessment of impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking involves significant
management judgements and estimates on the amount
of expected credit loss.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposure
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition.

The Group’s methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the amount of future cash flows for
receivables arising from securities and futures broking
normally encompass the nature and value of collateral
held and anticipated receipts; and where applicable the
Group performed credit assessment based on the specific
circumstances and market conditions which involved
significant assumptions.

Further details about the Group's receivables arising from
securities and futures broking are included in notes 3 and
23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
methodologies and assumptions used for estimating the
impairment of receivables arising from securities and
futures broking. Our procedures to assess the Group's
impairment included the following:

. We evaluated the Group’s methodologies and
assumptions used in credit loss estimation.

. We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk
and the basis for classification of exposures into
the 3 stages. Our testing included checking loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or
other related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

. We also considered the control procedures
performed by the Group over monitoring and
valuation of collateral and determine whether
there was any shortfall by comparing the loan
outstanding with the value of collateral.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to credit risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2019

REBERER
HE2019F 12 A31BIEEE

TURNOVER
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other losses, net

Gain on disposal of an associate
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic

Diluted

EH

HEiA - FE
HENDHER
TBER
HitE1a - #E

HEBENE W

HHEH

FEGES R Rl A

BRBE AT A
SR

ARREBHEAES

FREA

ARREBHFEAELS

BREF
BN

Note
B e

19

19

"1

13

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
16,258,416 17,130,414
1,477,810 1,675,928
17,736,226 18,806,342
(12,958,750) (14,175,208)
4,777,476 4,631,134
118,251 110,459
(2,784,708) (2,775,215)
(686,123) (613,503)
(452,443) (20,092)

= 26,614
(89,162) (36,991)

= 245

883,291 1,322,651
(239,758) (310,394)
643,533 1,012,257

95.0 cents 1l

149.4 cents 1l

95.0 cents 1l

149.4 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2019

FEZERER

HE2019F 12 A31BIEEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of financial
assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Revaluation upon transfer of a
leasehold land and building to
an investment property

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive loss
for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR

FREA
Hth2HEER

AARKENIEZERER
ZIER :
BREELZIERESR

ARTEENIEZRER
Z1ER
BERRAFERA
STARMEE
W KEE 2
NEEEEZS
HELH K
BFERTRE
o EL
REGHETSEHOEE
Bz EM2EKE/
(BB)F%

FREMEZEEE

AAREBHAA

THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY E{EER2E

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Wi

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FEx FET
643,533 1,012,257

(106,424) (314,059)

91,208 (48,263)

14 = 845
91,208 (47,418)

(15,216) (361,477)

628,317 650,780
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019

REMBRRE
B2019F 12 A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities and
futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities and
futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE

mE - kR BE
REME

EREEE

BN EERIA
BIEE

HEE
EERBRAFEEAR
R E RS A E
ELETRAEE

BIERDEE

RBEE

FE

FE WK

BN ERLEE L
FEUR TR
BNFOR - HAEYERR
REMEE
RAFEER AR
WHEAE
TEERMIA

A [m IR
REPHEHRSE
ReLERAE

BRBEE

REBEE

FEfTER X
BHERPECREEY
FEHBR X

Hit R R EIER
TESMTE
HERITER
BHERPECRELY
SHEBRITER
ECBREE

MEBE

AR
BRBERE

RBEEFE
REERTBRE

2019 2018

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& TER TAET
14 1,014,404 853,823
15 333,026 331,317
16(b) 1,270,893 =
16(a) - 11,040
17 271 271
18 217,087 207,821
20 935,599 844,391
33 112,021 27,064
3,883,301 2,275,727

21 8,932,514 7,451,326
22 915,804 1,001,041
23 585,230 1,018,341
24 433,861 327,377
25 13,394 13,595
30 145 5,555
66 28

26 443,797 442,519
26 1,028,326 1,302,527
12,353,137 11,562,309

27 116,156 146,017
28 503,271 457,010
29 542,920 491,875
30 9,158 12,405
31 496,594 507,988
31 280,000 200,000
32 1,473,773 970,140
16(c) 572,891 =
160,435 125,812

4,155,198 2,911,247

8,197,939 8,651,062

12,081,240 10,926,789
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

REMBRRE
B2019F 12 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets
EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing

Director

87X %
S

FRBEE
ATERITER

EXERARRE

B
BEITHA
e

BER

Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Director

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TET TET
31 440,330 257,734
16(c) 727,010 -
33 281,515 250,118
1,448,855 507,852
10,632,385 10,418,937
34 169,359 169,359
36 10,463,026 10,249,578
10,632,385 10,418,937

B

E=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Revaluation upon transfer of a leasehold land and building

to an investment property
Total comprehensive income for the year

Equity-settled share option arrangements

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture of
share options

Transfer from retained profits

Dividends declared and paid during the year

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture of
share options

Transfer from retained profits

Dividends declared and paid during the year

At 31 December 2019

R2018%E1 A1 H

RS
EREBLTES
K AR TREEF A2 Al
Dy aE AT ERS
BEEEIEREE
REHiRiEFEEL
REnEREf

EREERELE

B aE 2 RRER G
RERERTEERTRY
NRRBRERERRRERE

SRREEAN
EREREEMRS

R2018F12 4318

12018128318
BB EMBREENE 16T E
#2019 1 A1 B(EY)

FEREA
ERERZEES
AR AFEET AL 2 Ak
WEBEE 2 A FEES
BEELVENZR

EREANGER
RRUERENERRERERE

EaREEHN
EREREEMRS

12019512 A31H

Issued Share

capital premium

BRITRE R iaE

Note HK$'000 HKS$'000

Wiz THERL THERL

169,230 1,051,502

14 - -

35 - -

129 8,854

12 - -
169,359 1,060,356*

169,359 1,060,356

2.2 - -

169,359 1,060,356

12 - -
169,359 1,060,356

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$10,463,026,000 (2018: HK$10,249,578,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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REREZPR

EE2019F 12 A31BILEE

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
designated arising from
at fair value acquisition
Share Buildings through other of non- Exchange
option revaluation  comprehensive controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
reserve reserve income interests reserve funds profits equity
_BATEE
HARBZE  WBEER
PEHHERE  BRESEL HE y 5
BRERE  BFEARE ZATEERE ZER SEGEE ffEs REER ags
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER THERL
(Not\g 35) (Notg 36)
(Fit3E35) (Fit3E 36)
13,615 343,101 890,689 4,897 100,756 353,490 7,216,274 10,143,554
- - - - - - 1,012,257 1,012,257
- - (48,263) - - - - (48,263)
- - - - (314,059) - - (314,059)
- 845 - - - - - 845
- 845 (48,263) - (314,059) - 1,012,257 650,780
3,086 - - - - - - 3,086
(1,329) - - - - - - 7,654
(121) - - - - - 121 -
- - = - - 56,703 (56,703) =
- - - - - - (386,137) (386,137)
15,251% 343,946* 842,426* 4,897* (213,303)* 410,193* 7,785,812* 10,418,937
15,251 343,946 842,426 4,897 (213,303) 410,193 7,785,812 10,418,937
- - - - 628 - (22,585) (21,957)
15,251 343,946 842,426 4,897 (212,675) 410,193 7,763,227 10,396,980
- - - = - - 643,533 643,533
- - 91,208 - - - - 91,208
- - - - (106,424) - - (106,424)
- - 91,208 - (106,424) - 643,533 628,317
(983) - - - - - 983 -
- - - - - 68,764 (68,764) -
- - - - - - (392,912) (392,912)
14,268* 343,946* 933,634* 4,897* (319,099)* 478,957+ 7,946,067+ 10,632,385

2 It % RE A BE B AR AR A ISR R 2 67 A 5 10,463,026,000 7% 7T (2018 4F : 10,249,578,00087T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2019

TEABRERER
HE2019F 12 A31BIEEE

2019 2018
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations GEFER 37(a) 911,417 1,091,086
Interest received B & 69,653 94,260
Interest paid BERAE (58,237) (5,641)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBNER (35,363) (29,992)
Mainland China tax paid BEffPBARRERIE (215,962) (218,573)
Net cash flows from operating activities REXBAG R REFHE 671,508 931,140
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBZAERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE  #RREBEE
equipment (414,729) (338,192)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEW¥ - #eE MREER
plant and equipment FT1S 58 279 166
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEYE  MERFEEEZ
property, plant and equipment BEffks (434) (4,297)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets HipEE M,/ (i) (8,832) 6,911
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—KE 2N R FTS A 19 = 59,312
Dividends received from listed investments B TR ERE 24,710 23,597
Dividends received from unlisted investments 23k FHRARE 1,070 1,101
Net cash flows used in investing activities RERSMACREREFHE (397,936) (251,402)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BREZTH EERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise ~ RBERRIEREITHERZEITRG 2
of share options FTS308 - 7,654
New bank loans FIgRITER 2,371,140 2,270,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (2,120,313)  (2,305,561)
New bullion loans RS EER 2,102,108 1,525,003
Repayment of bullion loans EBEESEREE (1,811,132)  (1,616,667)
Principal portion of lease payments MEFBEZ AR 37(b) (655,508) -
Interest paid BEAFE (30,632) (30,534)
Dividends paid BERNRE (392,912) (386,137)
Net cash flows used in financing activities RERMAZHEREFHE (537,249) (536,242)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND B&RZERBEEz#Mm,/
CASH EQUIVALENTS (BD) R (263,677) 143,496
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ REMNZIRE RERRE
year 1,302,527 1,199,915
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEERESHZLE - HE (10,524) (40,884)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERZEERZGES
OF YEAR 1,028,326 1,302,527
CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2019

TEABRERER
HE2019F 12 A31BIEEE

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND B e RZRBEESEEIT

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances B e LRITER
Non-pledged time deposits with original RIS A DR =18 A
maturity of less than three months when Z BRI R

acquired

2019 2018

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & THERT THET
26 900,563 1,123,687

26 127,763 178,840

1,028,326 1,302,527

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT

1. Corporate Information 1. AREH
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability AEESBEEBRER DRI B REM
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company KL Z2BRAR - AAR 2 MM =R
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, fiZpA Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Bermuda. Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal FAREEUEZET2EBNT
activities:
. manufacture and retail of jewellery . KERERTE
. wholesale of precious metals . EeBBH
. securities and futures broking . FHRRMERE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 47 to the ARAIMERAFBEEHN GRS M B R E K
consolidated financial statements. w47

2.1 Basis of Preparation 21 REEE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment, customer gold deposits, bullion loans, derivative financial
instruments and certain financial assets which have been measured at
fair value as further explained in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 REEE(HE)
Basis of Consolidation (continued) REEE(E)
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income BRRRkEMEEKEIER 2 SAKEH
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non- FER AR AERREA A RIHERRRE
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests & MR E g BB R s A BR
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, RERAR - FESRERNARRZAER
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between BE #xn WA FAxkBELRE B
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. REREIRE NEBEH -
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and =B RERET EX Al 2 =81 il
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three TEZ-ESZEHRES  AKEgSE
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest M EERTEHIRELR - WBARM
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity BREREZE  MIWEKREEGE - BIE
transaction. B HAREHE
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets WAL B K EHHBARZZEH I - IR
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying BRER() ZMBRARZEE(RERE)
amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation REME (i) EEIEERRREER ZET
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the B R(i) fIABRZRFELER I
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and BR() EWREZATEE (i) EME
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share RBITE 2 AT EE R (i) BEEREM
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is FtEE 2 BERSKEE - FRIENEME
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the MW SR ANEB RIS  BER&R
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the EEEERERBEENEEMERAZ
related assets or liabilities. HREE BT EREN S EEERKNK

RERH
2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 BHEXREEZ2®

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year's consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements, the nature

and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

AEEERAEE 2R E M BRE BN
MBI ] RAIE T BB IS s ER -
BB REER ABER/EMRA
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BT RE ER HE
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REE 235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. HKFRS 16 did not have any significant

impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method
with the date of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this method,
the standard has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative information for
2018 was not restated and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and

related interpretations.

2.2

B BERRE225 (H)
BERMBRERRE 165
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AREENBREERNLBERN - F
AR BREENE 16 KL RHAEEER
HHEANEEELEEREATE -

AEBRARETEBRRMERNES
BIISHREERF 165 - WHN 2019518
1HERER - BB AE  BBERE
Al S BN R R 2 EAE 2019
F1ATBRBENPNEHR AR W
2018 FHLL AR W EES B EERE
ER S ENE 17T RREEERERR -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBREMT

2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued) 22 EHHERBEZSE(E)
HKFRS 16 (continued) BRI EREERE 165 (H)
New definition of a lease HENHE=

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of
initial application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into or

changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has certain lease contracts for its office properties, retail stores
and factories. As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for all leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of low value
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of
12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019,
the Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as

finance costs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)
HKFRS 16 (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental

borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the carrying amount
as if the standard had always been applied, except for the incremental
borrowing rate where the Group applied the incremental borrowing rate

at 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on
that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets separately

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation) previously included in investment
properties and measured at fair value, the Group has continued to include
them as investment properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to be

measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when

applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

J Applying the short-term leases exemptions to leases with a lease
term that ends within 12 months from the date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract

contains options to extend/terminate the lease

o Excluding the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-

of-use assets at the date of initial application

o Using a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably

similar characteristics

o Relying on its assessment of whether leases were onerous by
applying HKAS 37 immediately before 1 January 2019 as an

alternative to performing an impairment review
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

2.2

Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued) 22 EHHERBEZ#E(H)

HKFRS 16 (continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 was

as follows:

Assets

Right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

Equity
Retained profits
Exchange fluctuation reserve

Total equity

BERMBREERNE 165 (H)
R2019F1B1 B 2B E

&E

EHREEE

MmE - MEBNRE

AN EERIE

BNFE - HieERERREMEE
ERHBAEE

REE

8

Hpth TR R FERT IR B

#EE

B
RE A
SNE B B e

iR

R2019F 1 B1BEAESU B REE
B 165Kz 2T ¢

Increase/
(decrease)
®#m/ (L)
HK$'000
FHT

1,049,125
(1,596)
(11,040)
(18,112)
7,821

1,026,198

1,058,109
(9,954)

1,048,155

(22,585)
628

(21,957)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 16 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the operating lease

commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018

Less:

Commitments relating to short-term leases and
those with a remaining lease term ended on or
before 31 December 2019

Commitments relating to leases not yet commence
on 1 January 2019

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as
at 1 January 2019

Discounted operating lease commitments and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

22 EHBEREEEZE5H(E)
BRI EREERE 165 (H)
M2019F 1 A1EMEE A BEER2018
FNRANBMEEHAAENEERNR
T~
HK$'000
FEL
R2018F 12 A31 8K
REHNEE 1,240,545
L
EHRESHEERFSTEES
M2019F12 31 Bz
B JE 1 B (9,377)
AR 201951 B 1 B EARRA
M EEE (86,711)
1,144,457
20194 1 B 1 BEy Ik
T E B E R X 3.7%
R2019F1 A1 AN BREERLN
AERBEEE

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS
9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group had no long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures on 1 January 2019. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.2

2.3

Changes In Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has
any uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup
sales. Based on the Group's tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will be
accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'

and HKAS 8

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

’ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

2.2

2.3

B BERRE228 (H)

ER(EMMERERREEE)-2ES
235

EE(BRMBRESREZES)-RES
BRMAERBRESRYERAEL
SR ENF 2R 2 IEEE(—RER
[ THEE BB ) B (R RS 38 ) A3
RMeedBENZE  ZRBLTERR
BRGHENE12REBE I 2 HIALE
o HYEARERAM I RERER
BB REARZIHAE - Z2BARHY
WEEELEE I FAEBETRERR
(NERUBEHREAERERAGRERFEL
R ¢ (iii) B 88 A0 o) 78 7 JE AR Tl A 3 i
BEE - BE - ABAREEE - ABA
BBEHRRBE 2T ¢ R(v) BB
ERFERBENZE 27 - RERZR
B AEEZEENNHEECERES
DEEEM I EERERNR - ZAKEZ
REERRERETNE  AEERSEE
nﬁffﬂz RRA A R GHERR - K

&é%ﬁ‘T$%IZE\7ﬁ%Hi&£jﬁéﬁﬁ
ﬂ{ﬂ G2

ERAEHRERZ BB BRELER

AEBHANAGAMBRERAUTE
BAERE R R RGBT B RN F

) -
FRUBRLENEE 2R RE
BETA

FEEENE

BEMBRELRNE IR -
BRGHENF9RR
FANBAEENE TR
EHES

BEMBRELNE105E REFEEBRER

REBGHERE 28% AlA e EL
(2011 F)BATA AHNEELES
TE
EAUBREENE 17 RBRAY’

BEETEAE 15K BAMZES'

BAGIHEAESRETA
' 7R20204 1 A1 BUAR B 2 IR AR
2 }A2021 461 A1 BEUARRIA 2 SRt EER M

® AR SR A A B A AT (AR A

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions
or other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

2.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Business combinations and goodwill BEAHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and

pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBmEME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Impairment of non-financial assets FUBEERE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBREME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - BERZERITE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less ME - HER R R RN S  ER R

accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements, furniture,
fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBmEME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued) ME - BERBERTEE)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been
revalued by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the buildings revaluation reserve
realised in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment properties,
the related revaluation surplus is retained in the buildings revaluation
reserve and remains there until the subsequent disposal or retirement of
the property, where by that time the revaluation surplus is transferred to
retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold property under
an operating lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEMBmEME
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) B EE(BEBRM)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures Exchange”),
have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment

from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of
a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Prepaid land lease payments
Buildings

50 years
2-10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of office properties, retail stores and factories
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

24 FESHHEMEGE)
HE(H2019F1 A1 FEBER) (&)

FEEERFAENA(E)
@ ERREEE)

WAEEEMAREESMERA
BEEAKEIKARRBERE L
IEER - AIERZEEZ A&
EREHAENE -

HERE
HEaERNEERK B HRNEHS
NELMEERRRERR - B8
FEBREENK(ERELET
NHR)VREREREERE - BUR
RE—EHR LN EEERR
ERpEEERTREEN 2
B HERRNBEAEE AR
EfTEBERNTEE  RiEHE
HARKR T ARELITERILEE
R BIZAR RIS TR
oo WIFBURM K —HEH L EH
AEEERRNEEN RN B R
AR R AR AR R

REtEMEEFRRER - HEE
FHEENMNETZEE  A5E
BIREERG A RERLEEER
KitE - AR EEHEK  HEAE
SREMRRF S0 - D8l
RBEFER - Lo - HERE
W HHEY  HERREH (W
PRI BBk B 2 B ) 2 A O R 2R
BFUAEH)NEERBEENRE
BENGER  ARERGENRE
BEREHTE -

AEBEHEERERGAMBMRRE
B

RHHENEEEEEEE

AEEREHEERARAREAR
MAE  TEEHREENEHE
EMeHEMRBMEFERS
NREAZKAT  TEFBEEEE
BNHEE)  EAKEFZEEER
BEZHER AKESRERE
RENEEERERBEENL - 2
MEENEEEEERENHRER
REHYNRE LR R

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued) HE(H2019F1 A1 FEBER) (&)
Group as a lessor FEEERL AN

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in turnover in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as turnover in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value designated through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value designated through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FREMBRER

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMERMEE (F)
Subsequent measurement (continued) Higit2 (&)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument

basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes

in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) MEEERE(E)
General approach (continued) —BHE(E)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 -

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 -

to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

RBEKAAR M BEERE —RITE
JBUE B2 B R AR 3K R T SRS RO RS (L&
o RERTRBEDBRARBHEEESR

e -

F1ER - EERRBNARREILER
BEMHSMIA  HEBR
BRER12EABBEES
BHEETE

EERR B MRERR A RS
MEXELRIBEEEER
ENEBTR HEEBREER
EREMRBEEBENEE

it

FE20E -

F3IFR - NREHREHREERED
MHEE(BEREREL
B EEERE)  HEEE
FERENHENEEBRY
LHEIE

L%

RIS EARBAR IS U
EAERFERATHLEAREEKR SO F
EMATRE S AN AEETEESE
EEERERELE - BREELE A&
Bt EEHEERBRNEL  BREHRE
FHREHENEEEERREER
H- AEECREBFEEEBLER &
MEBEE  YRESAREERENE
TRIEMREERAE -

MBEE

TRIER R 512

B ERRERRES D BARA
FEEFABRSNMBRE  EERER
BN

FIAMBRBETNRA FEERER - 18
EERERNEMNR - RMRERRER
B

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

52/

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
() Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when

appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability

is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps to hedge its bullion price risk and foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value

is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are

taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Inventories FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Income tax (continued) FRrE% (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops provide
customers with a right of return. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(@)  Sale of goods (continued)
(i) Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

(i) Customer loyalty programme

The Group's retail of jewellery segment operates a customer
loyalty programme, which allows customers to accumulate
award credits when they purchase products in the Group’s
retail stores. The award credits can be redeemed for discounts
on products in a limited period. Under HKFRS 15, the customer
loyalty programme gives rise to a separate performance
obligation because they provide a material right to the
customer and allocated a portion of the transaction price to
the loyalty credits awarded to customers based on the relative
stand-alone selling price.

Commission on securities and futures broking

Revenue from the commission on securities and futures broking is
recognised at the point in time when the relevant contract notes are
executed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Contract liabilities EHEaE

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods and services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the
returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any
revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 FEEHHEMEE)
Share-based payments (continued) 65 > A5 ()

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are

also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave

earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’'s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2.4

TESHBERE ()
Shi ()

HREREBENKERANFEREE
FOFERHAENEBEE - XA
o RNEEVRERNERE - IRRS
M RBAARETAERBRNREREE
HFEREEXFERRENEE - BB
ZERMNRINT - AEEREERN
RENNRIUHDFIEEZH A -

BETREBEBUINEERMB AR 2R
BYIEBTT - RREPR - ZFEBZE
ERAFRZERERRZRTEXRERE
7T HESERARZFE 2 g THEX
MERBT mUMELZELNER &
Hit2mE R R LN INEZ BT
K5t o WL EBINER - BREBINES
Bz EmE2ERER IR BRED

=7
s ©

RERRERERME  REBAIMEE
WRBARZRERERRERERRZ
EXME BB - NEBAINEE BB
AEEFRRELEZHSRENLAFE
ZIEFHERMEBETT -

TEEHHER AR

EERBANREAEE CGAMBRER
HYERA RX  BERARZZHBH
B HBMREFENA IR ERES
TRIEM G - T RBRER o WERR KM
IR AREEN - RSB A RARR TR
ZEAERBBRABHEEEAAE LR
2o

H

BRAEE Y BHRER - BHR2 A
Sh - EREEL THIMGA M BRED B
ReBEYEEA N -

iz

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery

Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).
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REMBREME

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)

(d)  Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(@) Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model used the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group’s past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2019, the amount recognised as refund liabilities was
HK$633,000 (2018: HK$496,000) for the expected returns.
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3

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments have been valued using the
income capitalisation method and net realisable value method. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates about capitalisation
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$34,464,000 (2018: HK$37,287,000). Further details are included
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's accounts receivable is
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on other financial assets

The measurement of expected losses on other financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk.
These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

U

(9)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management estimates the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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REMBREME

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(h)

(i)

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value. The fair value was based on
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
including but not limited to economic outlook, sales forecasts and
the forecast market value for the jewellery products. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@)  the manufacture and retail of jewellery segment produces jewellery
products for the Group's retail business and operates retail stores
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan;

(b)  the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers;

(c)  the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures; and

(d)  the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment

in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income, gain on
disposal of an associate and share of profit of an associate are excluded
from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2019

Segment revenue
Sales to external
customers
Intersegment sales
Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income

Profit before tax

Note
B s

BZE2019F
12A31H
LEE

7 Ep 2 5
HETINREP

WEBIHE
Hfth W zs

A
HIHARHE

AR
A5
LT N

BRI A4 A

4. REITBERE)
Manufacture Wholesale Securities

and retail  of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total

RERUE BEERE BHER Hit
REE #3 HERLE ES7d &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTET THERT TERT TR
16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
- 885,758 - 2,940 888,698
- = - 12,044 12,044
16,258,416 2,321,430 24,113 20,965 18,624,924
(888,698)
17,736,226
1,282,011 5,727 (428,640) (1,062) 858,036
25,255
883,291

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @
AEESEBRBRAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2019

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value gain
on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on
derivative financial
instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-
use assets

Impairment of accounts
receivable

Impairment of receivables
arising from securities
and futures broking

Write-down of inventories
to net realisable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure
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Bl
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EF s
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REE B FEE

VENY LS
ZITE
EREEEZHE
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ARRNERLES
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MEFEE
#E

BHER

BN

%7

Manufacture
and retail

of jewellery
RERE
REE
HK$'000
TER

(19,693)

(70)

1,600

224,208
121,300

4,394
233,607
681,449

18,790

11,790
76,977
414,679

Wholesale
of precious
metals
BELE
#a
HK$'000
THET

(23)

721

1,932

4., REFIBER(E)
Securities

and futures Other
broking businesses
wHER Hit
HERL ES)d
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET
(49,806) (6)
(525) -
- (2,088)
201 -
1,803 340
3,910 -
445,668 -
12,185 -
50 -

Total
At
HK$'000
FET

(69,528)
(525)

(2,088)

(70)

2,321

201

224,208

123,232

4,394
235,750
685,359

18,790

445,668

11,790
89,162
414,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2018

Segment revenue
Sales to external
customers
Intersegment sales
Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of an
associate

Share of profit of an
associate

Profit before tax

HZ2018F
12H318
ILEE

pag- V€3
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4. REIBERE)

Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of precious and futures Other

of jewellery metals broking businesses Total

KBRS E2E EH K Hoh \

REE iy HEre % &5
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT FET FET FET FET FET

5

17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
- 1,177,438 - 3,105 1,180,543
- - - 11,790 11,790
17,130,414 2,779,969 34,513 41,989 19,986,885
(1,180,543)
18,806,342
1,205,170 14,088 42,815 9,502 1,271,575
24,217
26,614
245

1,322,651

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

@

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended

31 December 2018

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties
Net fair value loss on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through

profit or loss

Net fair value loss/(gain)
on derivative financial

instruments
- transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or

loss

Net gain on bullion loans

designated as at fair

value through profit or

loss

Net loss on disposal of

derivative financial
instruments

Net loss on disposal of
items of property, plant

and equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid

land lease payments

Impairment of accounts

receivable

Write-down of inventories
to net realisable value
Finance costs
Capital expenditure

HZ2018%
128318
LHEE

Hittn BE R

FIBHA
BEWA
REMEZ RYE
B
EERLATER
AEEBZES
BEENQTE
EFER
PTESMIACD
TEEFEE/
(Uzs)
- T REHE
EZRXS
mAFEERAR
SN BEEZ
NHEEFER

EERBRAFER
AEREZES
BEEFNE

HETESMTA
FHER

HEYE - #ak
REBEBFER

VER B
ZHE

-3 BNz
R

FE AR FURLE

MEGFEER &R
e

BHER

BEARMRX

Manufacture Wholesale
and retail of precious
of jewellery metals
RERGE £eE
REE #
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
(26,525) (12)
29,353 =
3,522 (512)
(11,811) -
5,309 448
2,302 -
209,745 =
281 -

8,459 -

706 -

31,201 =
336,931 -

RESBER(H)
Securities

and futures Other
broking businesses
EHK Hil
LR SEE E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT TAT
(68,119) (6)
(481) -
- (10,647)
3,478 -
88 -
2,395 384
5,790 -
1,261 -

Total
At

HK$'000
TR

(94,662)
(481)

(10,647)

29,353

3,010

3,478

(11,811)

5,757

2,390
212,524
281
8,459
706

36,991
338,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong and Macau B KR
Mainland China LalEiyN 7
Taiwan Ed-

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau B KR
Mainland China LalEiyN 7
Taiwan S

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior
years.

5. Turnover

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover:

Revenue from contracts with customers FKEEFEH Nam
Revenue from other sources BB MAT Wz

Gross rental income from investment

REMZELEHO BHES

properties operating leases: WA :
Other lease payments, including HibEFIE - BEEE
fixed payments (DES

4, RESBER(E)
(a) HEEH
HEFIKELZ Wam
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
7,912,189 9,363,640
9,689,478 9,328,580
134,559 114,122
17,736,226 18,806,342
Fitlr R B R TR R F AT i E
S o
HERBEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
1,600,135 692,549
1,204,597 684,081
30,949 27,642
2,835,681 1,404,272
LR EEERTIREEMRE
WwEES  YTEEEEAKRATF
EBEFAEMBEEAKRSWIEEE
MR IBEE
(b) BHIEEFzEH
RAFER EFERELAEERA
BP R A S BRE R
DR10% °
5. EEE
BEEAENTER 2l
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
17,724,182 18,794,552
12,044 11,790
17,736,226 18,806,342
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

5.

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Type of goods or services
Sale of goods
Securities and futures broking

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Geographical area
Hong Kong and Macau
Mainland China
Taiwan

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point
in time

5. EEHE(E
REEFEHNz W
() DB EH
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious and futures Other
2 of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
RERE BB ZHER Hity
KEE #a HERE % &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THT TET TET
BZE2019%
12831HLEEE
ERBREER
EmiHE 16,258,416 1,435,672 - 5981 17,700,069
H5 R gL - - 24,113 - 24,113
REEFPEHZ
Az 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
HETE
B RRMN 6,435,605 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 7,901,371
Ll 9,688,252 = = - 9,688,252
- 134,559 - - - 134,559
KEEPANZ
Pl e 16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5981 17,724,182
KRR
EEmEEE
16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

5.  Turnover (continued) 5. EEHE(E
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEZEAN 2N (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () SEYmEHE)
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of precious  and futures Other
Segments GaRsi) of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
RERE LB FHER Hits
REE BE HerR £% Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT TAT THT T
For the year ended BZ2018%
31 December 2018 12A3MBLEEE
Type of goods or services EmBRBEE
Sale of goods EmiEE 17,130,414 1,602,531 - 27,094 18,760,039
Securities and futures broking ErLHERL - - 34,513 - 34,513
Total revenue from contracts REEPEHZ
with customers Fellgey 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
Geographical area HETE
Hong Kong and Macau BB RRMN 7,688,991 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 9,353,129
Mainland China HE AR 9,327,301 - - - 9,327,301
Taiwan )| 114,122 - - - 114,122
Total revenue from contracts KRERFAHZ
with customers Felligey 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
Timing of revenue recognition Wi EE
Goods transferred at a point TEmEER
in time 17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts to

customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Revenue from contracts with
customers

External customers

Intersegment sales

Intersegment adjustments and
eliminations

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

For the year ended
31 December 2018

Revenue from contracts with
customers

External customers

Intersegment sales

Intersegment adjustments and
eliminations

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

28

BZ2019F12 A
B1HLEEE

REEFEHZ
i

IREF

WEBIEE

HZE2018F 12 A
B1HLEEE

REEFENZ
i

INRE P

WEBHE

WEBFAE &
Eaf

REEFAHZ

Bk

FEMBmEME
5. EXH(A)
REEFEHNz Wz (E)
() AR EERE)
RERP AR 2 WD EE R
BERESBIHENT
Manufacture ~ Wholesale Securities
and retail  of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking  businesses Total
RERE ELR BER Hits
REE #a BERE £33 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET THT TET TET
16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
- 885,758 - - 885,758
16,258,416 2,321,430 24,113 5,981 18,609,940
- (885,758) - - (885,758)
16,258,416 1,435,672 24,113 5,981 17,724,182
17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
- 1,177,438 - - 1,177,438
17,130,414 2,779,969 34,513 27,094 19,971,990
= (1,177,438) - — (1,177,438)
17,130,414 1,602,531 34,513 27,094 18,794,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting 2 BRER M
period:
Sale of goods EmiHE

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which give rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

Securities and futures broking

The performance obligation is satisfied on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed and the payment
is generally due two days after the transaction date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers.

5. EEHE(E

REFFAERNZ W (K)
(i)  DBEUBEH(E)

RESHIBIIAGNEE

(ii)

TRETAAHREBRARZAR
HEBNRIIAGHERZ NES
B URBAERREK 2 BOR

TR WHESH -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TET
53,730 67,439
BHEF

AEERBAEEZHEE R M
T

EmiHE

BORERRXNEREER - Kb
XEFPRMEREP HIRR{I1460
AAZESN - HERRTENRS
RERREE - BOAHREFIRE
HOREHE  AUEERINERZA

ErRMEEL
BHEERBUEBESOXIEZR
7 BEERK - HRATERE RER
SEBMEMASIREEER - K12
R 5T E 2 T IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

6. Profit before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value”
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(2018: Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments)
Auditor’s remuneration
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Operating lease payments in respect of
leasehold land and buildings:
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents

Employee benefit expense* (excluding
Directors’ emoluments (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions
Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension scheme contributions

HERHA
W EETRRHE'

ME  MEBREREZNE
EREEEZRE

(20184 : AN LA E

)

BB &

AENEARRYEBRENY

HERA

BRHET I RET ZREHD

A
RIEHEEHIE
FAHE

BERAMBEZ* (TRE
EELEAGETINE
TERFS
EnitE  BRERY

RIS I
B BRI

EREEHFFR

6. BRBADER
AEEZBRHEAEFENR(GIA) :

Note 2019 2018
MitsE HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHT

12,599,520 14,180,556

11,790 706

14 235,750 212,524
16(a), 16(b) 685,359 281
4,063 3,872

16(d) 55,178 -
- 768,105

- 18,697

- 786,802

1,378,343 1,316,105

35 - 3,086
210,035 197,592
(59) (301)

209,976 197,291

1,588,319 1,516,482

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AEESEBRBRAERRA

117

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w e R R B A

6.

Profit before Tax (continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable”

Impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking”

Direct operating expenses (including
repairs and maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment properties

Net fair value gain on investment
properties”

Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss’

Net fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges’

Net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss*

Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or loss"™"

Net loss on disposal of derivative financial
instruments™

Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Dividend income from unlisted
investments

Design fee paid to a related party**

Foreign exchange differences, net

statement of profit or loss.

This balance is included in “Cost of sales”

JE U B R (E
BERBERCEELZ
JE Ut BR FORL(E
B REMEERLE
X (BEEERRE)
BEWMEZ A EEF RS
EEBEATEEITREZ
ELBEENATER
FEE (M)’
TESMTAZRATEE
FEE - TREHHAERLZ
x5
BAFEBFAEBEN
BHEEZ AT EEFEER"
EEREATEEITREL
EBREEFEE(WE)"
HETEERTAEFEER"

HENE  BRRRERE

FEE
FLEUA
FiiREzREBA
FETIREZREBA

MEEA L HREE *
EHER  FE

on the face of the consolidated

& The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,545,000 (2018:
HK$3,969,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

statement of profit or loss.

AR

These balances are included in “Other losses, net” on the face of the consolidated

* %

These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion transactions entered
into by the Group is to manage the Group’s bullion price risk. Such loans and
contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

This balance was included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018. The design fee
was determined in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group paid to
a related party.

BrBEATER ()
Note 2019 2018
= HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
22 18,790 8,459
23 445,668 =
1,357 3,064
15 (2,088) (10,647)
(70) 29,353
2,321 3,010
201 3,478
224,208 (11,811)
123,232 5,757
4,394 2,390
(69,528) (94,662)
(24,710) (23,597)
(1,070) (1,101)
= 169
5,742 37,993
" hEBRBEEEAERE LIHERA]

==

* EERMAZBREIN T RESZ 2Rk
K E{EAE BB E 2 £ % 3,545,000/ T
(20184 : 3,969,000 ) °

# HEEHse
18 EEd o

BEGABREREIEME

AR

WEEREEEGARER EIHEKA]
EF RGBTV LM ESERSEHER
AEEECBERRR ZEEERE
R A B &R IR R I o

o GEERERIEHE2018F12A318 1k
FEMGABEELMHERA T - [
BEALTIRZBABNASEEER—K
EBBRPET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

7. Finance Costs
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and ROTEH BXREMERZ
other loans &

Interest on lease liabilities

8. Directors’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

HEREMNE

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries and allowances

ik

HbEi < -
e lER

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIEEL

Pension scheme contributions

RIKEF IR

7.

MBER
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
42,852 36,991
46,310 -
89,162 36,991
=¥

BEEWRA - BB R BEH5383(1)
@ b)) OROERAR(BEEEH
=ERROIE 2 AFE2EEME
WERWT -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
3,320 3,119
6,181 5,951
502 1,426

103 99
6,786 7,476
10,106 10,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

8. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during

the year is as follows:

2019

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

2018

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

8. EEM<(A)
FRENRENTEE M IWT

Discretionary

bonuses Pension
Salaries and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable  contributions Total
HER BARER Ek&
we =413 BERA FTEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT TR THT T
PTES:
[BXRK & 430 3,247 257 = 3,934
B EE 360 300 25 16 701
BAKEE 300 2,634 220 87 3,241
1,090 6,181 502 103 7,876
FHTEE !
TRBLE 360 - = = 360
EREAE 360 = = = 360
FRIMENEE A * 360 - = = 360
FREALE 430 = = = 430
ESXEL* 360 = = = 360
B 360 - = = 360
2,230 = = = 2,230
3,320 6,181 502 103 10,106
YTES:
BXREE 407 3,128 744 = 4,279
Rk B 338 291 49 14 692
BAKEE 277 2,532 633 85 3,527
1,022 5,951 1,426 99 8,498
FHITES !
TREBRE 338 = = = 338
B A 338 = = = 338
RRIR BN % & * 338 - = = 338
FREASAE 407 = = = 407
ESXfEL* 338 = = = 338
Ak 338 = = = 338
2,097 = = = 2,097
3,119 5,951 1,426 99 10,595

kS Independent Non-executive Directors

* BUFNTES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year (2018: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).

Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2018: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2018: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e KoL
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIBIEA

A E  BRERX
RIAEE I

Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

1,500,001 /& 7T 2,000,000 5 7T
2,500,001 T Z 3,000,000 70
3,000,001 % L= 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 7T £ 4,000,000 870
4,000,001 % 7T ZE 4,500,000 /%70

10.

EEME(E)
FRWTEELMMES RN TBUIERNTES
(20184 : &) o

FREEYEFTVEMRELRBHEE
IS MZHE (20184 - &) o

SREBAEME
AHRRRERARXNZMENT

—

Tt

o
i

Number of individuals

A

2019 2018
1 1
2 —
- 1
1 -
- 2
4 4

LEREHHES

FRAREREREFMESRIERE
(2018% : ME)EE  HFMME AR
B Ll Hi a8 o AEEH B =(2018
F:=R)BRRFMIFESES 2 0M
TAMPT :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
8,181 7,955
767 3,182

- 219

409 398
9,357 11,754
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

10.

11.

Five Highest Paid Employees (continued)

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments
fell within the following bands is as follows:

10.

LEREHHES (H)

MENFUA TR ZRHMIFESEEE
ZABIT

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % T % 3,000,000 7C 2 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %L £ 3,500,000 70 - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 %L E 4,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 % 7T £ 4,500,000 /7T = 2
3 B
Income Tax 1. FiEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: EBMNERDEFARBBEE 2/
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during & &R B s A A B E16.5% (2018 F -
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying 16.5%) M  EAEE—RKEBL AR
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year O AR A B20182019 R EE
of assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2018: HK$2,000,000) RAEMZ MREHFETHEHE 2 B - %
of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining BB AR Z R & - 2,000,000
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. 75 0(2018 4F © 2,000,000/ 7T )34 8.25%
SHE TR R AR B A AR 16.5% &T
o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate Income REPEARLMBECEMSRA([LE
Tax (the “CIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the FEREDREEMEHEERAA -
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2018: 25%). Taxes RERARENB AR TR AE25% (2018
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax F:25%) o Eih[EERT G < BB
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. DEAREREEEREERER 2 BAN
KEHH o
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT
Current — Hong Kong KE - B
Charge for the year FATIA 33,609 61,412
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRAEE (86) (11)
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere RH - PEARERE it
Charge for the year FARIEAE 252,142 218,864
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR 245 220
Deferred (note 33) ETE (Pt E33) (46,152) 29,909
Total tax charge for the year FANRIEMARE 239,758 310,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT
11.  Income Tax (continued) 1. FEH(E)
A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the TREASEFELENRB R REMAL
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of FEREEER OEEREAEWERR
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as BREEMZHIE  URIREEHERAE
follows: ZIBETTHR
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT
Profit before tax B 250 Al g A 883,291 1,322,651
Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of $Z&BETEH K 16.5%

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (20184 : 16.5%) 5t EHiE 145,743 218,237
Difference in tax rates applied for specific ERERNEEAMNSEHEE

provinces or enacted by local authorities MEER 79,949 64,141
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous  BtiBEHIfE 2 FHIEIE

periods RERRE 159 209
Profit attributable to an associate NN N il - (40)
Estimated income not subject to tax L A EIN N (30,269) (17,556)
Estimated expenses not deductible for tax PR 2 5t s 12,847 5,814
Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10% RAEERPE ARKEMERK L 2

(2018: 5% or 10%) on the distributable profits MB AT Z Al D& 5% 3% 10%

of the Group's subsidiaries established in the (20184F : 5% 2% 10%)

People’s Republic of China SEERBCRE 32,651 37,113
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 5 AT i 2 BIE B 18 (3,220) (1,402)
Estimated tax losses not recognised HARRER L EETHIEEE 1,898 3,878
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEAREEEHRAE 2B 239,758 310,394
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's share of HE2018F12A31BLFE A58
tax charge attributable to the associate amounting to HK$15,000 FE1RBEE AR IE R 15,0008 7T - B8
was included in “Share of profit of an associate” on the face of the ShfreBnR EIEAEE ARNER]
consolidated statement of profit or loss. H oo

12. Dividends 12 BRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT
Dividends recognised as distribution during ~ RERBERIRE 2
the year: BE :
Final dividend for 2018: HK44.0 cents 2018 FAREME - FEBEM44.07E

(2017: HK42.0 cents) per ordinary share (2017 4F : 42.07%84L) 298,071 284,522
Interim dividend for 2019: HK14.0 cents 2019 EIfR B, - TEimAR 14.0 4L

(2018: HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share (20184 : 15.03%(L) 94,841 101,615

392,912 386,137
Dividends proposed after the end of the RBERRBRIRE 2
reporting period: BRE:
Final dividend for 2019: HK25.0 cents 2019 F RS - FEBER25.081l
(2018: HK44.0 cents) per ordinary share (20184F : 44.07%l) 169,359 298,071

The proposed final dividend for 2019 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

2019 FHUR % 2 KRB B R IS HIRER
EHIRE - YARRERRERRAE
FAGARERBRREEBREFAE £
R - TEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

3"

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 677,434,000 (2018:
677,402,822) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings &R

Profit attributable to equity holders of the RRelE=fEE AREER
Company, used in the basic and diluted ARt ESRER
earnings per share calculation REERT

Shares )

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in R EEREREF
issue during the year used in the basic earnings ZEREBITL AR

per share calculation R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for B/ & B AR INAEF 15
effect of share options dilution 17 < B AR A

13.

FRREREEARESRER

SREARFNSBEFNANREER
BABERH R F AR RITINEF IR
677,434,000 (20184 : 677,402,822
) EBREE -

BZE20195 12018512 A31 B LEE
EREERN LB IREARR AR
BAEREFGE - sHERRANTEAR
MEFEHRHEFREEITERKREER -
BAEGREARFEMAEER S8
R MERE GG BETHEMEERITH
EBBINET R -

BREAREERNTRATHE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000

TER TET
643,533 1,012,257

Number of shares

RABE
2019 2018

677,434,000 677,402,822

= 5,563

677,434,000 677,408,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 R2019F
December 12 A 31
2019 =}

At 1lanuary  R2019%
2019 1A1H
(restated): (&%) :

Cost or ANkt (B
valuation

Accumulated  ZEHHTE
depreciation

Net carrying  BREDE(E
amount

At 31 December 720184
2018, netof 12 A31
accumulated B - 0%
depreciation  BitHE

Effect of Finasm
adoption of LR
HKFRS 16 Al

=
N
RS
D

At 1January R 20194
1

2019 1TH18
(restated) (&51)
Additions NE
Transfers B
Disposals T &
Depreciation ~ FERHTE &
provided &
during the
year
Exchange B 5 3%
realignment

At 31 December 720
2019, net of 12
accumulated B 1%
depreciation &

At 31 December 720194

2019; 12 A31
BH:
Cost or BRA Sk A
valuation
Accumulated  ZFHE
depreciation
Net carrying  BREIE(E

amount

RERMBREWT
14. WX BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEME
AR Me K5 KA . .
EY: R EF k& HERRE AE HEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR TET THT TR TET
19,712 517,574 155,742 1,211,307 13,153 67,005 1,984,493
- (227,956) (95,933) (799,724) (8,653) - (1,132,266)
19,712 289,618 59,809 411,583 4,500 67,005 852,227
19,712 289,618 59,809 413,179 4,500 67,005 853,823
- - = (1,596) - - (1,596)
19,712 289,618 59,809 411,583 4,500 67,005 852,227
- - 18,918 307,176 1,082 87,553 414,729
- 108,380 - 44,795 - (153,175) -
- - (629) (4,044) - - (4,673)
- (21,565) (15,652) (196,432) (2,101) - (235,750)
339 (3,792) (833) (7,569) (29) (245) (12,129)
20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
20,051 620,810 166,950 1,403,085 13,596 1,138 2,225,630
- (248,169) (105,337) (847,576) (10,144) - (1,211,226)
20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14. W% BERREE)
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
land buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEME
KA HELH B KB KA
EL i REF R REREE AE EETRE At
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE THT THIL THT THT THAT THT THL
As at 31 R2018
December 12831
2018 A
At 1January M 201841
2018: A18:
Cost or A AE
valuation 20,274 528,830 144,711 1,106,367 12,664 - 1,812,846
Accumulated  BEHE
depreciation - (209,850) (84,538) (746,641) (9,496) - (1,050,525)
Net carrying  BREIR(E
amount 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 - 762,321
At 1January  R2018%1
2018, netof  A1H
accumulated 3B 23t
depreciation neE 20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 - 762,321
Surplus on BERH
revaluation - 845 - - - - 845
Additions NE = — 18,392 246,820 3,149 69,831 338,192
Transfer from  EEREN
investment ¥
properties 15 - 1,200 - - - - 1,200
Transfer to BEKEN
investment ES
properties 15 - (1,000) - - - - (1,000)
Disposals HE - - (51) (2,505) = - (2,556)
Depreciation ~ FRFER
provided #
during
the year - (22,057) (16,068) (172,708) (1,691) - (212,524)
Exchange 0E 5 RE
realignment (562) (8,350) (2,637) (18,154) (126) (2,826) (32,655)
At 31 December 720184
2018, net of 12 A31
accumulated B - 1%
depreciation  RiHHTE 19,712 289,618 59,809 413,179 4,500 67,005 853,823
At 31 December 720184
2018: 12A31
H:
Cost or AN (B
valuation 19,712 517,574 155,742 1,226,486 13,153 67,005 1,999,672
Accumulated  ZiiTE
depreciation - (227,956) (95,933) (813,307) (8,653) - (1,145,849
Net carrying  BRER(E
amount 19,712 289,618 59,809 413,179 4,500 67,005 853,823

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

@ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14. W% BERREE)
Certain of the Group's buildings were revalued on 31 December 1993 REEETEFNI9093F12A31BK
by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally qualified valuers. The BUZXEERGEMERBUETE
buildings were revalued on an open market, existing use basis. Since ffi - ZERFRERRAERARMEES
1995, no further revaluations of the Group's buildings have been carried HEH  AEEB 19955 FRMABEB G5
out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption, provided under the HRF 16K BERRE T 28R &
transitional provisions of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out BEHNERGETRZME  HBRHE
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were stated ETRRER WY EAHEFHEE
at valuation at that time. fit
Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated WELEEBFURLRARBHE
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been approximately 5| BR - HBRE (B 4 /413,739,000 % JT
HK$13,739,000 (2018: HK$15,094,000). (20184 : 15,094,000 L) °
15. Investment Properties 15. REWE
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE THER FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1RZEEE 331,317 322,013
Transfer from leasehold land and BEHELTHRET
buildings 14 - 1,000
Transfer to leasehold land and buildings ~ EZHAE+#H REF 14 = (1,200)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EERARE TR 6 2,088 10,647
Exchange realignment BE 5 SR (379) (1,143)
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31 B ZEREE 333,026 331,317

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$333,026,000 on 31 December 2019 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
pages 181 to 184.

EEECRESEME LS  BHHERE
RETRENEDEMBELE  BNES
BEZNERRBEBEINGEZME -
M2019F12A318  XEBZREY
ERERMBYRESEREEMBERT
BRAR#ETZEEERA333,026,000
BT °

HZEREMENCEROBTE =% &
—FSHBERNGRATBEREMT16A -

BRARBERENEZE - THIBFEARE
18121848 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERS

Bt

15.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018

Transfer from leasehold land and
buildings

Transfer to leasehold land and buildings

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019

R20184%F1 A1 HZKEE
HABETHRET

HEHEELHIET

REGEERPEZNATEE
REZF W

B R

R2018F 12 A31B R
20191 A1 B2 RAEE

RERRTERNAFEE
AR F W

(RIS

R2019%F 12 B31 B ZEEEE

15. REWEE)
DNFEEER

FBERENEADBEANTEEER 2L
A3 B =20194F k201812 H31H
IFFEARR BRI 2 2 EIW &L FE
B 28%  TEEAXELRR3 K
SEEFEEME R kREREEE
BERBITEDF

BB RFEEFRIRHIAZAFE

B =¥k :
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REBRE REBEN
A/ ES BFEZU* &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET TERT
300,280 21,733 322,013
1,000 - 1,000
(1,200) - (1,200)
10,410 237 10,647
- (1,143) (1,143)
310,490 20,827 331,317
500 1,588 2,088
- (379) (379)
310,990 22,036 333,026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to
the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation technique

fEE R M
As at 31 December 2019
A2019%12 8311
Properties held in Hong Kong Market comparison method
REBRFEZME miELBE
Properties held outside Hong Kong Market comparison method
RBEBRIMNGE 2 ME B BE
As at 31 December 2018
®2018512A31H
Properties held in Hong Kong Market comparison method
REEBFEZME 5L EOE
Properties held outside Hong Kong Market comparison method
REBFINGE 2MFE 1AV

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.

The investment properties are valued by the market comparison method
having regard to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion
and other factors collectively.

15. REWEE)

AFEESR(E)
T AR EMERERMERABERITEE
EHBIHE
Significant
unobservable Range
inputs (weighted average)
EREUBRYE EE (hHEFY)
HK$
BT
Price per square foot 7,000 to £ 58,000
BYARER (11,000)
Price per square foot 200
BRELRER
Price per square foot 7,000 to & 58,000
Y HFRER (11,000)
Price per square foot 200
BYHRER

BEAREBEAE LA THREETRE
WEz NFHEEKEEMFD

REMETIZZEEMS L2 ALRHE
RP1% - B EAEITHE - (HER
B RME L - B KN 2
CEIFMREMAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

16.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of this land lease. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

16.

HE
AEBEREBEA

AEERAREENZEETHI]EHEAR
K- ERAER —RENFAMEEZ K
BHELH BHR/S00F  MBREZF
T HENER BT EREMNER
PR HEETHEARENTF1E10
Fo—RME - ANEE AR [RAEE AN
ATHEHZEROHEEEE - FTHEAYD
BEAEEENR  FEHIWMT

(a)  Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019) (@) FENTHHEEFE(R2019F 14
1HZF7f)
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R2018% 1 A1 HMEREE 12,216
Recognised in profit or loss during the year (note 6) FRNMERRIER (M T6) (281)
Exchange realignment I 5 A (626)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 20184 12 A31 HMEEMEE 11,309
Current portion included in prepayments, other STATERRIE - HibERR
receivables and other assets REMEEZREE D (269)
Non-current portion e D 11,040
(b)  Right-of-use assets b) (EEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the FANAERFERESENERAER
movements during the year are as follows: SEMT :
Prepaid
land lease
payments Buildings Total
Bt
HENE BF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THER TR
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 11,309 1,037,816 1,049,125
Additions NE - 964,298 964,298
Write-off #s - (54,842) (54,842)
Depreciation charge (note 6) WERX (MEe6) (268) (685,091) (685,359)
Exchange realignment ERTIECE= (190) (2,139) (2,329)
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 10,851 1,260,042 1,270,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

AMBHEME

16.

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019

New leases

Write-off

Accretion of interest recognised during the year
Payments

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019

Analysed into:
Current portion
Non-current portion

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42(a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

16. MHE(E)
REBEREBA(E)
() HEEE
FAHREABENEAAEREHN
T
HK$'000
FET
R2019%1 81 BEEEE 1,058,109
HHEE 956,487
s (54,571)
FAEERF SIERE 46,310
ES (701,818)
[& 5 3% (4,616)
72019412 A 31 BHEEE 1,299,901
=
eI D 572,891
FEREIBD 727,010

HEEBENIHAITRES
WREMT42) HE -

;5

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (d) KRBz R HEGE BN
follows: o
2019
HK$'000
FTEx
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNS 46,310
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZIE 685,359
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases  E2fZHITAE & 44 T HA
with remaining lease terms ended on or before M20195F12A31H
31 December 2019 (included in selling and dZzAlfE R EMHEEREN
distribution costs) AX(GFAEERNHER) 30,070

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases
with remaining lease terms ended on or before
31 December 2019 (included in administrative
expenses)

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (included in selling
and distribution costs)*

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

HEHAERHTHS
2019412 A31H
S BERNEMEERENRAY
(GFATTHER) 679
Kt AHEGEFENTEMEERE
(FFAHERDHER) *
24,429

RIBREIRERN IR 786,847

The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in a shopping *

mall which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the
Group's turnover generated from the retail stores and the units in the
shopping mall. There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements
for these leases.

AEERELATEEHRNE
MHOMEN  ZFHERZTN
ZK%EEEZE%%EP/D\?%Eﬁ&
BENEANSXEBAEROT R
HETRER - ZEHETRE
REFEERBSTH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

16.

17.

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e)  The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows relating
to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 37(c)
and 38(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of
commercial properties, industrial property, residential property, roof
and car parking space in Hong Kong and Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$12,044,000
(2018: HK$11,790,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

—FR
—F U HERFIAR
MR EBE=FAR

Within one year
After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years

Intangible Assets

Trading rights Rk

Cost at 1 January and 31 December, net of

accumulated amortisation ks 25T
At 31 December: ®12A318 :

Cost (gross carrying amount) KA (BRE 4 E)

Accumulated amortisation EHE:E

Net carrying amount REFE

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash
flows of the Group indefinitely, which are not amortised.

16.

17.

W1A1BR12A31BZHA

HE(#)
AEBEREEA(HK)

() BREELMRERLAENER
AFABHNEERENARESR
HEED RN R A MRS T
37(c) % 38(c) H F -

FEEFERHEA

AEERELCETHELTHEEERENE
(BfT3E15) > BENEBRPBEAELD
EWE TENE TEPE EER
FE - ZSHENKRBEEXAPY
FERES  YREERMNBETTRE
TEHHS AR  FRNEAEBEEERHE
4 I A 512,044,000 7T (2018 4
11,790,000 7T) * FEBHNEGRA KR
A BIFES

20195128318 AEBREEMR
ZAITE B &1 ] HSH A TR S o e MR B

HHREFENT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TET
10,361 8,822
4,076 3,965
- 743
14,437 13,530

BRYEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
271 271
524 524
(253) (253)
271 271

e e EE
EESAAKEERDE TR REF
- B AT IR A T T (R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o)

MRS B

18.

19.

Other Assets

Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese

18.

TREESH([EREES5 )

Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE") BERAR

Statutory deposits in respect of securities and FREFRBER L2
futures broking ETERE

Rental deposits* HEZS

Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, ~FEE W% « WERBREIEE 2
plant and equipment BEffEe

* The rental deposits are related to office properties, retail stores and factories

leased by the Group (note 16(b)) and the majority of the terms of the lease
arrangements are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$80 million (2018: approximately HK$91 million) relating
to operating leases expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion
that such deposits are of a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases
are expected to be renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the
Directors consider it appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets.

Investment in an Associate

19.

In prior years, the Group held a 36.63% interest in Foo Sang Enterprises
Company Limited (“Foo Sang”), a Company incorporated in Hong Kong
whose principal activity is property investment in Hong Kong. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in Foo Sang to an independent third party for consideration of
HK$59,312,000. This transaction had resulted in the recognition of a
gain in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31

December 2018, calculated as follows:

Proceeds of disposal
Less: carrying amount of the investment

Gain recognised

Total consideration received in cash

& PSR IR
WA EEE

= ﬁgwul'lyﬁn

ERHR S RRE

Foo Sang was indirectly held by the Company and had been accounted
for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements
up to the date of disposal. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group’s share of Foo Sang’s profit and total comprehensive income
amounted to HK$245,000 and HK$245,000, respectively.

Hin&E

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THET

1,500 1,500

2,935 3,035

201,905 192,973

10,747 10,313

217,087 207,821

& WHAEBZHAE  TEEHRBER
H(HE160b) 2 HEREERS - K5
BOAHBE—F HFAXN80EES

TE(2018F : W BEEET)BE—FRNE
HZRBHN - EERA - REBRNE
HRS AR SREN EE  HERSE

BREME - Bt EERAEBHZR

ENBARIERBDEE -

RBENR2RE

RBASRE  AEBREELEEEEARAD
A([BEE] E—RREBEMRILZA
A EBERAERBETUERE)Z
36.63% 25 © HZE 2018412 A31HIE
FERN AEERBIE=AHEER
EEvEHEE - K(EA59,312,000%
T ZBRXHWHENEE2018F12 A
MR FENGABRETRR 8
N
2018
HK$'000
FAT

59,312
(32,698)

26,614

59,312

BEERAQRHEERE  HELEEH
ERERA B RE R F AR AARR o &
Z2018F 12 A3MHIEFE  A£ER
EEMEGSAREEKRELES R A
245,000 87T ) 245,000 B 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

20. Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Listed equity investments, at fair value
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited*

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value
Sure Success Holdings Limited

Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company
Limited
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s listed equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$784,300,000 (2018: HK$634,480,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of HK$24,185,000 (2018: HK$23,116,000), HK$611,000
(2018: HK$682,000), HK$413,000 (2018: HK$413,000) and HK$46,000
(2018: HK$6,000) from Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Sure
Success Holdings Limited, Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company
Limited, and Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited, respectively.

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEC"), six exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange and
one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange as a consideration for the
cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange and 1 share held in the
Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 3,561,800 (2018:
3,561,800) shares of HKEC, five (2018: five) exchange trading rights in the Stock
Exchange and one (2018: one) exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange.

ERlRORE - RAFER
BRRHLEERBR AR

BEBEEBRIMARANE

20. EEABRAVEEFAHMGEZEHKZEOHM

FEETROIRE - BOTEE
Sure Success Holdings Limited

28 () RRXERAF

BEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
901,135 807,104
20,110 20,110
13,993 16,849
361 328
34,464 37,287
935,599 844,391

LR 1R E E PRI A IETE AR AT
BEFARLZEKE - DAKER A%
EREBRBILE -

M2019F 128318 REB N FHA
7 % & Bk ™ {8 784,300,000 7£(2018
F 1 634,480,000/ ) 18 - BASE
BT E—RIBITEEERER(EES) -

HZE2019F12A31BILFEE A&EH
W B A% 224,185,000 7T (2018 £
23,116,000 7T ) * 611,0007% 7C(2018
1 682,000/87T) * 413,000/ (2018
4 1 413,000 7T ) 146,000 7£(2018
F:6,0008TL)DRREBTBRHRE
BHTARR A A Sure Success Holdings
Limited * 24 (L) RREFER A A K
BERELBRHMARLDA e

e R20006F3 860 BEXRFMREE
BT (&) 1&H 2 RA & a8l - REER
BREERGREERERAR(BRA])
6,223,500 R« NEMRAR S E
KBRS HE - LBV R 28 52 A
BRAEZ6RBRORERRFERZ1REK
e M2019F12A31H AEBEE
7 % P 3,561,800 % (2018 4F : 3,561,800
BB - RfE(2018%F - AE)BMRHAR
SER—E(2018F : —E)HRMRS
3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

21.

22,

Inventories

Goods held for sale

Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables

Impairment

Accounts receivable

o

REHEZR

o

[a]

FEWE 5 K= A RIR
mIE

FEMARR

The Group's trading terms with its retail customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement while trading terms with corporate clients and
wholesale customers are on credit with credit period generally up to 60
days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

21. BE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
8,932,514 7,451,326

22, FEURERR
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERx FAT
942,312 1,009,157
(26,508) (8,116)
915,804 1,001,041

AEERETERPIUNRBHEFEE
o

NHRERERRE

MBS ERP Rt

BEFIINRS N REH MBS

AE60K - BHEHEREEEARE

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

HER - BRESFERRRE -

R|EHR - BURFRIEESR B R

REERERZREITAT :

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months
2 to 3 months
Over 3 months

1{EA A

122184
2E3fEA
#BiE31EA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

As 1 January
Impairment losses, net (note 6)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December

R1A18
WEEE  FE(MEe)
R

Mm12A8318

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
719,355 798,652
107,788 73,704
30,415 70,764
58,246 57,921
915,804 1,001,041
RS 2 REBRREZSMT -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
8,116 -
18,790 8,459
(398) (343)
26,508 8,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBHREMT
22. Accounts Receivable (continued) 22. FEWERIR(E)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REBNEHRE B BFERBEEEETH
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates B Ut 2EBREEEE - BHEXD
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments EREFEUBXRER(HINENE - &
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type REMURBRFEANTR) 2SEARE
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability- SRR BEBREET o BT ERE
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and AREEMERAR B ZEREEBEARR
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past BERHESEREREEHCAERA
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. THRER &R R R REE MR TE
Generally, accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than Bl —RimE - AHBA-FREAXR
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. RIS TE B EHR R E T UAMIEE
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TNRETIAEE F AR EEEERER

Group's accounts receivable using a provision matrix: ERREERBER

As at 31 December 2019 R2019612A31H

Past due
ki
Less than 1to3 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total
B SRM1ER 1Z3B HBBE3EA &t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBEX 0.14% 0.94% 2.16% 32.77% 2.81%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE4AE (FHT) 701,616 122,282 47,038 71,376 942,312
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEEAEEEE(THT) 951 1,146 1,018 23,393 26,508

As at 31 December 2018 R2018512A31H

Past due
pnli
Less than 1103 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months Total
mnE  LW1EA 1E3@A ®@EBE3EA CEH)
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBEX 0.29% 0.31% 0.33% 12.75% 0.80%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRE#E (FHT) 795,186 109,823 63,176 40,972 1,009,157
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) T E EE(THET) 2,345 335 211 5,225 8,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

23.

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Receivables arising from securities and futures EAREBTES
broking conducted in the ordinary course of NEEREES
business: Z FEWERK -
Cash clients Re®P
Clearing houses, brokers and dealers EEM KRR 5E
Loans to margin clients’ FREFEN'
Impairment A

ErRMERLESE
2 MR

Receivables arising from securities and futures
broking

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,
repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis
was disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not
relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing.
As at 31 December 2019, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$710,484,000 (2018:
HK$1,359,514,000).

The receivables are settled two days after the trade date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers. Futures deals are
normally settled on a cash basis. Receivables from margin and cash clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and futures broking are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January R1A1RH
Impairment losses (note 6) REEE (P 6)
At 31 December M12A31H

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking are categorised
into excellent, good and fair. Excellent refers to exposures which margin
obligation can be met and payment of interest and principal is not
in doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collateral. Good refers to
exposures which principal and interest are partially or fully secured but at
a relatively low level. Fair refers to exposures which loss, partial or full, has
incurred and with insufficient collateral.

23.

BENHERLELE 2 BLURR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
54,769 41,665
36,371 20,806
939,758 955,870
1,030,898 1,018,341
(445,668) =
585,230 1,018,341

! FEEFERNEBEEESEERR
BARERKEER VIRGENEHE -
EERA HARBHFTEREERZ
HE BERRINER RERER
o e 2019128318 B B
FREFERUBHFEKFEERRZ
4 T (& 5710,484,00058 TT(20184F :
1,359,514,000 87T ) °

BRERER S A RRMARKELE
BT~ BRI RZ BB TE 2 EETH
B -HERGRUREHEE - REREF
FHEEREBNARIASEPHEK
BRREE AHENBREEE -

BT A R A
BEEZDNT

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET
445,668 -
445,668 -

BrhBERLEE 2 BURERR D A
£ RIFR—f& - HERETNBRITRE
SEML MABRAEHMNTFER -
BEERRORE MRS LR - RIFE
EARERFSEL DD HER - BER
EERERE - —RELEERIHFIHE

BE% - BERRTE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

23.

24,

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount by the Group's internal credit rating

23. RERFELLELZEYERR(E)
BRAEBENBEETERFRDEE D 2

and year end classification: IRERELNWT
As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
EIRER E2RER E IR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET FHET
Internal rating grade MBS E TR
Excellent He 319,697 - - 319,697
Good R - - - -
Fair —R% - - 711,201 711,201
319,697 - 711,201 1,030,898
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£ 1R el 124 B3 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TAT TET
Internal rating grade NEMEERTR
Excellent fes) 610,817 - - 610,817
Good R4F - 407,524 - 407,524
Fair —R% - - _ _
610,817 407,524 - 1,018,341

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

Prepayments TR IR
Deposits e
Right-of-return assets REREE
Other receivables ot R AR X

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

2. FENFE - HttEWHRIREMGEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TET
376,713 275,866
51,621 45,201
420 363
5,107 5,947
433,861 327,377

BETE LB B EERIATEER
A m ERAR Sk 2 FEUBR 50 © 2019 F K
2018F 12 A31H ' EFEHEERE

*@/J\ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

25.

26.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Listed equity investments, at fair value iR E  ZAFEE

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances B e RFITER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity ~ FEFEIH B DR =18 A

of less than three months when acquired 2R E S
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERES

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB554,223,000 (approximately
HK$619,954,000) (2018: RMB708,419,000 (approximately
HK$806,252,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for periods of 2 days to 1 month,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients” monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

25.

26.

RAFPEEFARBNUBEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
13,394 13,595

LRBHREDIFEEERE  HOBA
BRAVEEFABRSNMBEE -

RERERRE REFHERE
AERFRAREZAMMT -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
900,563 1,123,687
127,763 178,840
1,028,326 1,302,527

RIREHR - REBEFPEARELE 2 K
BRRAUARBABN RS RIBITER
45554,223,000 7C A R #(47619,954,000
% 7T ) (2018 4 : 708,419,000 7T A B #
(#7806,252,000%870)) - ARKEAREES
MABRBHEMER A REPEARE
ZINEE B R TR - EE R EEE
BT AEEEEEBEREETINEE
BZBITHEARBRAAHMEE

RTREEREE RARITERFIEZF A
KEREFIE - REMERFR 2 FERAR2
REVEALS - LIIERZEHERA
LERIA B o RITEREREERFME
HIY EA B SR 2 IRTT

AEERFFRRITRRBIULETRS - A
FHESRHEEFPRARRBEL 2N
B AEEE BB ERPFED BREA
MBHRARRAR/RDHEER T Z[KEP
BEAT ] YTREAEER LRFPHA
ZENBRRIBR . AEMERRENT
HEAEPKRN - ARBETARATFHE
BEKEZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

27.

28.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1B A A
1 to 2 months 1 Z=218A
Over 2 months B2 @A

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing.

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

27. EREX

Payables arising from securities and futures

Payables arising from securities and futures
broking

ERBEBTES

broking conducted in the ordinary course of KGR EES

business: Z TR
Cash clients® Begp'
Margin clients* HFRER*

ARhRERLES
ZIERRRAK

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.

#

Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$383,185,000 (2018: HK$389,684,000) representing those clients’ undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the cash
client accounts payable included an amount of HK$484,000 (2018: HK$866,000)
in respect of securities transactions undertaken for the accounts of certain
Directors. The cash client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates.

The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

RIBEEER  BREFRBEZZAH 2K
RO

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

115,651 146,002

431 14

74 1

116,156 146,017
FEMBERARS o

28. BERHERLELEZEFERR

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

441,745 412,621

61,526 44,389

503,271 457,010

EERRENEEBEESERROINES
AR - BRI ERTRRE DT -

! BREBFEGPHRITEHFEBEEEL
FERHIR & % P BR 3 N4 383,185,000 8 7T
(2018 4F : 389,684,000 B7T) B EEF
TERAEE 2 RIRDGIESBINEHIRS -
R2019612A318 ' ERBEEFPERK
BREAETESHEFETESRRIZAE
484,00078 7T(2018 4 : 866,000/ 7T ) °
EABREEFERENEKEEE RIZE
E3CS G-

* e TR & P BR AR BRI B8 R IR
EHRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

29.

Other Payables and Accruals

Note
BieE
Accruals FEFHIER
Contract liabilities BHEE (a)
Refund liabilities BHREE
Other payables Hoth e AR K (b), (c)
Customer gold deposits ®FE® (d)

Notes:

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received from customers
Sale of goods
Customer loyalty programme

HERR

EFBHEE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals, and amount allocated to customer loyalty programme of the
Group's retail of jewellery business. The increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was
mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from customer orders
of goods.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

As a result of the initial application of HKFRS 16, accrued lease payments of
HK$9,954,000 previously included in “Other payables” were adjusted to the right-
of-use assets recognised at 1 January 2019 (refer to note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements for further details).

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding
at the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2019, gold
deposits from customers also included approximately 2,800 (2018: 2,800) taels of
gold from certain management personnel of the Group.

KEEP RN R

29. HitENERMRKREER
31 December 1 January 31 December
12A31H 1HA1H 12HA31H
2019 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET
65,152 75,918 75,918
88,610 53,730 53,730
633 496 496
341,427 311,932 321,886
47,098 39,845 39,845
542,920 481,921 491,875
Wi &E :
@  ANEBEFEBENT:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
74,504 38,175
14,106 15,555
88,610 53,730
AHNEBERERRAKERESBRIRZ
REBRRTE  URSBEEAEEKRET
EXBEPRBETE 2L - 2019F
AREBEENEZANRETFERE
W ER 2 52 R TR SRR AN PR -
(b) EHENERREE -
(© RRERERBE B BEREREAE 165
52 A E A E A B A BR 50 Y RE A AR B R OR
9,954,000 B TEAEREAEEE B
R2019F 1 A1 EBR(FHBERGENB
BEME2.2) -
d) AEERAZPREFSRE - REME

B RERAAEEGEAES  REHAR
RRBREN s msBETHEER - BFF
SHERRERREBRTEZ AT EEE
HEE o AT EESRHERT - WEEE
BERERT - W201912 8318 BF
BeNMEEAEEETERABZERL
2,800 (20184 : 2,800 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

30.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Foreign currency forward contracts BHINES L)
Cross currency swaps R X B3 5
Liabilities afE

Bullion contracts E2BEH

The bullion contracts, foreign currency forward contracts and cross
currency swaps are stated at their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2019, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$464,039,000 (2018: HK$465,719,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts
and cross currency swaps to manage its foreign currency risk. The foreign
currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps were measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof
amounting to HK$5,410,000 (2018: HK$6,400,000) were charged (2018:
credited) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group's commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

30.

B
fTEEMIA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
- 105
145 5,450
145 5,555
9,158 12,405

ECBAY  BRHIESHRRINEY
BFHERAEQAFEARYER Lil¥ R
EeRMTAZRGNBEEERITZE
BUEXTERESBEHLRIET R
2019128318 E€BAAZAYN
Y EE4A(E 5464,039,00078 7T (20184 ¢
465,719,000 7T) ©

o REBET L EBPIEAHRIX
ERSHEBREINERR - ZERBIE
EHRRNEEISRZ AT EEF AL
matE o FARGRAEBREENKR(2018
FERDHEATEEEHNCEE
5,410,000 7%7C(2018 FF : 6,400,000/ 7T) °

AREAIY LRANRERE EERARE
Bz AmERRRRIMNERK - ZFRH
RI B0 NG & S @ ST IR 2 5 A

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEBRBRAERRA

42

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Current
Portion of term loans from
banks due for repayment
within one year
- unsecured
- secured

Current portion of bank loans
due for repayment within
one year

— unsecured

Non-current
Non-current portion of bank
loans due for repayment
within a period of:
More than one year but
less than two years
— unsecured
More than two years but
less than five years
— unsecured

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to

be settled within one year.

ik
RERTEAN—FA

HHERZHATE
HEX

- B

- HEA

AR—FREHEER

ZBITERRD
B

- BER

FRB
AR T HIR R EIH

BEZRTERZ
FREHD :
—FALE
PyNTES
- BER
MEU LB
PREF
- BT

31. FERTER RBERPESLEEZG

BITEN
2019 2018

Contractual Contractual

interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BHF=E F8A TAET BHFIE 38R FAT

% %
1.6-3.7 2020 56,040 1.6-43 2019 132,256
3.9-5.0 2020 280,000 2.3 2019 100,000
336,040 232,256
33-4.2 2020 440,554 28-38 2019 475,732
776,594 707,988
33-4.2 2021 276,896 33-38 2020 209,865
3.3-4.1 2022 163,434 3.7-38 2021 47,869
440,330 257,734

1,216,924 965,722

AERTEF(BRREREEZEHNE
PO TR BT - BEBER —F
REMEELBEREFEEGER DA
ARBABZHBIERERHN —FRBF

f&-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

31.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s banking facilities amounted
to HK$3,306,440,000 (2018: HK$2,784,036,000), of which
HK$1,216,924,000 (2018: HK$965,722,000) had been utilised at the end
of the reporting period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting to
HK$570,000,000 (2018: HK$470,000,000) are secured by certain assets of
the Group as disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 32), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 42(a). As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BIT
New Taiwan dollar HEK

31.

FERTER BERPELLELZH
BRITEN(H)

M2019F 128318 REBE 2 H 17
& & % /53,306,440,0007 7£(2018 4 :
2,784,036,000 70 ) R EHKE
B) 3 H H11,216,924,0007% 7T(2018 4 :
965,722,000 7L ) > & T HRITEE®E
570,000,000 7£(2018 4 : 470,000,000
BID)AAREB NG A B BREN T 208
BrATEERBERR -

MAERTERE(BRRITERRESERE
B(ME32)) AAKENAETHHL
X ERANESRMBBILIERER
B o MAKEIERGZ - FAIRREESEA
MEFREE - W AEBZETEHE
a2 4 T IR 2R B
BERIAEEZGSR  ThAKERE
EETHERETREERAE

AEERFEREERTERRECBE
ETHERHETZERRZER - Alt
FEERARBRBEETZESRTE BT
BAETEENEEEREZER - 5
FEEEERERHECRR ZE—SHER
T 42(a) © R 20194 % 20184 12 A
318 AKEVEEREMBBEE

B

BRITEHNHE WA 2 REE N TSR
REBA

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FET TAT

1,190,884 933,466

26,040 32,256

1,216,924 965,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

32. Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities

Contractual interest rate
Original maturity

BESREE - BER

BEeBXHEE

AFIE
R38R

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading

companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfilment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group’s key

management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting

period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi
United States dollar

ARE
X7

32. E2BfEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
1,473,773 970,140
3,468,008 3,305,879

0.9% -4.9%
1-5 months B

1.0% - 4.9%
1 - 6 months A

ZRBIERLRTRERECBES ARG

B MENFREESBERENA -

ETRSBEERABHASEMRGTE
B2 RERNRAI RSN
B -

EAEECBEEENAREESBERK
HeYheFREZ KGN - ENESBE
ETRBETERREIERIRERKRAT
BEEEEENFERE - WERELAR
AFEEFABRzHBEEE  MBEBZ
FEEBREEZENDEABEER ALK
BzIEERBARRM -

ZEETBEERMERRZREEAT
SIEHEREN

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
709,416 463,108
764,357 507,032
1,473,773 970,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

33. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss
during the year

Gross deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
at 31 December 2019

EEREAE

201851 A 18

FARGAELR
i YAGIN)
ZIEFEHIR

M2018F 12 A31B K
201941811

FARGAERER
i YAEIN)
IR IR

2019412 A31 BR
RAEMBRRARER
ZIEER BB R

Depreciation

33. EEFRE

FRETHBAEREELZENT :

allowance
in excess
of related  Withholding
depreciation taxes Others Total
HERBE
HBERETE HERB Hith &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TET TERT
37,010 176,189 1,313 214,512
(756) 36,756 (394) 35,606*
36,254 212,945 919 250,118
(1,340) 33,656 (919) 31,397*
34,914 246,601 - 281,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

Deferred Tax (continued) 33. EEHIE(E)
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE
Losses
available
for offset
against
Decelerated future  Impairment
Lease tax taxable  of accounts
liabilities  depreciation profits receivable Others Total
THEHERR
‘ ERBAA
HE8E HENERE ZE8  ERRERE Efty ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1 418 - 10,768 - - 11,445 22,213
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERREFRERR
to the consolidated statement A/ (%) 2z
of profit or loss during the year EREHE - (2,696) - 1,787 6,606 5,697*
Fxchange realignment RS - (49) - - (797) (846)
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 128318 - 8,023 - 1,781 17,254 27,064
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 REEUBREENZ 165
VA7 7,821 - - - - 7,821
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R201951 A1 R(E5)) 1,821 8,023 - 1,787 17,254 34,885
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRRNGABRE
to the consolidated statement STA/(HB) 2
of profit or loss during the year BRI (85) 613 73,612 35 3374 77,549*
Exchange realignment B AR (120) (30) 30 - (293) (413)
Gross deferred tax assets recognised 18201912 A318
in the consolidated statement REERBIRAE
of financial position at AL ELHEAE
31 December 2019 % 7,616 8,606 73,642 1,822 20,335 112,021
* Net deferred tax credited HK$46,152,000 (2018: charged HK$29,909,000) to the * FERNRGEE B R ANRSLG,152,000/8 7T

consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year (note 11).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$445,907,000

(2018: HK$7,201,000), Mainland China of HK$25,401,000 (2018:
HK$19,473,000) and Taiwan and Macau of HK$26,300,000 (2018:
HK$39,841,000). The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in Taiwan, Macau
and Mainland China will expire in ten years, three years and five years,
respectively, for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses of
HK$42,696,000 (2018: HK$66,515,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain whether
taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

(20184 : #1# 29,909,000/ 7T ) Z IE T
BEFE (M) -

AEERBEARELAZHEER
/3445,907,000 87L(2018 % : 7,201,000
BL) RABEABRELAZHBEBRR
25,401,000 7T (2018 % : 19,473,000
BT RREERRFEL 2 REBER
26,300,000 7T (2018 4 : 39,841,000
BIL) c RBEBELZHABRTERY
PRI SEENBBE DR RRE
ARBER - MR EE - RPIRP B AREE
EZHBEBBRDRIRNTF  =FRAF
AER - BRTEREREA TR S
Mo BRI EEBERTREBRE —BE R
ZMBRR] - AR REET RSB ER
BaF e E MR ERBREE WL E
42,696,000 7L(2018 % : 66,515,000
BTN SERERELHBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

33.

34.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Share Capital

Authorised: ETE ¢
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
677,434,000 (2018: 677,434,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

7201841 A 1H
BB E ()

At 1 January 2018
Share options exercised (Note)

At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and
31 December 2019

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the subscription rights attaching to 514,000
share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$14.89 per share (note 35),
resulting in the issue of 514,000 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$7,654,000. Amounts of HK$129,000 and HK$8,854,000 were transferred from the
share option reserve to share capital and share premium upon the exercise of the share
options, respectively.

33.

34.

1,000,000,000 A B EE
0.25 BILZ &R

DR ()

RERBELEMERZE - RREARIR
BIR A 2 AN IR B D E RN R B B IR AR
BEZ10% BURTEIR T © Ith38 7 i 2008
F1AVERBER - WiEAR2007F 12
A31B%2Z&H o a0 BAREEINE
EFEREEERARKIRT - AlR]AE
HARENBRHBE - i AEERFE
ARENBRIZMBARME @ BEHEHK
RA5%H10% - FAlt - AEBBEME
RZENFEARLRBERK L ZHB AR
R2008F 1 A1 HRELE Z AT HIK
Z I BB TERER -

ARRAEBRRIKE 2 BB L EY LG
Mo

677,434,000 % (2018 % : 677,434,000
B)EREEC.25 Btz BB

7201812 A31H 20191 A1H
%2019 12 A31H

[N
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FET
250,000 250,000
169,359 169,359
RARRAZEEBENT :
Number of
shares Share
in issue capital
B#1T
B EE AR
HK$'000
FHT
676,920,000 169,230
514,000 129
677,434,000 169,359

FifsE

EZ=2018F 12 A31 B L& E * 514,00017 B Bk
TEFTH 2 RIS 14.89 /8 T 2 RBEETE
(Bi#E35) © EHBEIT514,000 WAL D - BEER
BORMBAEBFY)A7,654,00078TT  RITEE
AR #EEs 129,000 7T & 8,854,000 /% ;T B B A%
EFEED SR ERARBOHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

35.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to recruit and retain
valuable employees.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may, at
its discretion, invite any employees, Executive or Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants,
shareholders of any member of the Group or such other persons from
time to time to be an eligible person to whom share options will be
granted as an incentive to attract and retain them for their contributions
to the business development of the Group. The Scheme was approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company
in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the
date on which the option is granted as the Directors may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors
provided always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

35.

fERR st &

ARAHRA-BERES SR
2)) RTRAER2EEHAEEES
ZEBGRTREREE - URSAEERE
REUBBUASEAREEZESR -

REBZTEZRTE ARREZGATE
BEBEEAREE  RTESHIEHRTE
E(PEBYFNTES) BH - &R
A REBIMKERRZBRAZEE
MALTAEERAL  HEGTERER
B EARBEEHASEEREREELE
BMmeI VB HEZ &R - Zf 2R
2010412 B 7 BIE AR 5] B B At fE & 3%
& BRI eI BITEUESERT - B A
EEZBSET10FRNBER

AEREZ BRI 22 HEREm A T
BII7RNRE  AETERERZTE
BIERBZBEBTRMBZ210% °

BEZEEREM12EAR(EERLE
BHREERLL) » RIBZE 8 RA R A E
HibBRAET 3R R 2 AR T AT
B - BT ETZRNEAE LRAE
BBARREBTRNBEZ1% -

BRERREZTEIGRZRTE  NESF
ROBRER AERLZBREZAR
HERATRIGTE  EEEERHBRE
BEREC B RERERERKER : 1
RE[MERT @ R HEBREE B (BE
HRHBREZOER - MZBREEY
B )EF T AHBBI0F -

REBRELZNVERNRHEN AL
EA(BRERLEENE R)EES - R
BXRHBREZROE  BHM1.00
AT °

BREZTRENHESET @ T
BELABUTRRZIERE © ()ARAR
DREBLN R BEBZ SR RERMIIZ
W B (DA RARRMREEELN R H
RIS AR5 BB S REXRMIIZ
FHYHE R ARR RN ZE
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

35.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year, the movements in the share options to subscribe for the

35. [HERRAERHEI(H)

FR - % TRBARRBRID 2 BAE

Company'’s shares under the Scheme were as follows: BEINT ¢
2019
Number of share options
BREHA
Cancelled/
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised lapsed Balance
Date of  price as at during during during as at Exercisable
Eligible person grant per share 1/1/2019 the year the year the year  31/12/2019 period
#2019
=1 20195 FhEs/ 128
RERAL RuBH RE 1A1B&8%  FRRE  EROE k% 31B%&H TEH
HK$
B
Continuous contract ~ FEAH 22/7/2016  14.89 2,842,000 - - (194,000) 2,648,000 31/12/2017 -
employees’ B8’ 30/12/2020
22712016 14.89 3,338,000 - - (195,000) 3,143,000 31/12/2018 -
30/12/2020
Total = 6,180,000 - - (389,000) 5,791,000
2018
Number of share options
BRESA
Cancelled/
Exercise Balance Granted Exercised apsed Balance
Date of price as at during during during as at Exercisable
Eligible person grant per share 11112018 the year the year the year ~ 31/12/2018 period
R2018%5
ik 120185 ) FREH/ 127
AERAL RLAE  7RE 1R1B&S  FARK ERIR X% 31B&#H T
HK$
BT
Continuous contract &K 22/7/2016  14.89 3,403,000 - (514,000* (47,0000 2,842,000 31122017 -
employees’ B8’ 30/12/2020
22/712016  14.89 3,460,000 - - (122,0000 3,338,000 31/12/2018 -
30/12/2020
Total At 6,363,000 - (514,000 (169,000 6,180,000

Continuous contract employees include an associate of a director, Ms. Genevieve

CHOW Karwing, who held 53,000 share options as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018. During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. CHOW exercised
52,000 share options, with a weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which the share options were exercised
being HK$18.52.

REGHNEERREESZ —EHEAL
AZFALZ L HR2019F12A318 &
20184 12 A 31 B4 53,000 17 fE AR 4 ©
HZE2018F 12 A31 BLEEE - AT
{52,000 R BERRAE - MANA AIARID A B4
1115 5% S BB AR 48 B HA AT /0 A S35 I 1B
B1852BTT

HZE2018F 12 A3 BLLFE - ARARK

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the weighted average closing price
of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$18.57.

RBEEITEZF B E R BA R T

HKTI{E R 18.57 BT

®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

35. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$3,086,000 (note 6) during

the year ended 31 December 2018.

(2) At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 5,791,000 (2018:
6,180,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 5,791,000 (2018: 6,180,000) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$1,448,000 (2018:
HK$1,545,000) and share premium of HK$84,780,000 (2018: HK$90,475,000)

(before share issue expenses).

The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is
5,713,000, representing approximately 0.8% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

36. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 66 and 67 of the consolidated financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to

reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

35.

36.

fERR s 8 (&)
FifeE

(1) HZE2018F 12 831 AILEE  REFRE
R 2 BB B XX 43,086,000 T (K &E
6) °

@) RBEHER ARREXFETHES
5,791,00013 (2018 % : 6,180,00017 ) & &
115 2 BERRHE © RIRA N BB AZRHE
BHAEERITEZBRE A28
% 175,791,000 % (2018 4 : 6,180,000 f% )
BONE AR - 37 3735 AR 71,448,000 7T
(20184F : 1,545,000/ 7T ) & & 17 & B
/584,780,000 7C(2018 4F : 90,475,00075
70) (RINBRRIDBEATHIRE) -

RAGARBEREEMEER AR 7
REZTEETAHBETZRNDBE A
5,713,000 » IR A B EBEITRMH L
0.8% ©

@

AEEREERFANBEFE 2
FIEN A REFE 66 R67T B ZHEA
BREBHERA -

BEERRBIFRECEZBBERR
ER ARERNPEARKMBRIL 2
BRRZEHENEBRAERRIRE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a)

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from

operations

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

Interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Dividend income from unlisted investments

Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Net loss on disposal of derivative financial
instruments

Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on investment properties

Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Gain on disposal of an associate

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets/
amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

Equity-settled share option expense

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable

Increase in receivables arising from
securities and futures broking

Increase in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Decrease/(increase) in cash held on behalf
of clients

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Increase/(decrease) in payables arising from
securities and futures broking

Changes in derivative financial instruments

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Cash generated from operations

37.
850 AT A
st
BB
(R A T
FBMKA
LTS 2 BB
LR E 2 BB M
HENE  RERAEE
A B

HETEERTAFER

EERRAFEERE
BEZELBIEE
BEE(KE)

REMEZAFEE
s

EERBRAFEERER
BzEcBEENRT
BEFER/ (k)

BRATEE ARG
WBREZ A FEE
EEE

TESMTIAZATEE
FEE - AMIAERE
ELL5

hERE N R 2 s

ME - BENREITE

ERREEZHE,/
BHEM A EHE

AR SR A
BERBEEREL
YR B R A
R B SRR
W RETER
EE

FEZEM

R 2R,/ (i)

B RBERLEL 2 IE
YRR 2 B

BEH0R - HieEUERR
A& E 2 2 A0

REFPHEREZHD/
(2m)

FERTERR 2200,/ R L)
R &,/ CR )

TTESMmIA 28

HioE MR R EHEE
Z3Em/ OR)

REmRERE

RERERERME
(a) REDAELLEMBRSZYER
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k= FEx FEL
883,291 1,322,651
7 89,162 36,991
19 = (245)
6 (69,528) (94,662)
6 (24,710) (23,597)
6 (1,070) (1,101)
6 4,394 2,390
6 123,232 5,757
6 224,208 (11,811)
6 (2,088) (10,647)
6 (70) 29,353
6 201 3,478
6 2,321 3,010
19 = (26,614)
6 235,750 212,524
16 685,359 281
22 18,790 8,459
23 445,668 =
35 = 3,086
6 11,790 706
2,626,700 1,460,009
(1,551,725) (123,711)
54,964 (122,870)
(12,557) (33,435)
(130,093) (34,513)
(1,278) 73,140
(35,486) 9,575
46,261 (117,038)
(123,232) (5,757)
37,863 (14,314)
911,417 1,091,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2019

At 31 December 2018
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Changes from financing cash flow

New leases

Foreign exchange movement

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Write-off

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on bullion
loans designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

At 31 December 2019

R2018%F 12 A31H
RINEBH BREER
F16FMFE

20191 A 18(E5))

BERSREEY

HHE

SNEZE)

FIBHY

NEBEEBREREN
BRI

Gz

ETARNTEET
BEvELBEE
FEE

EERRATEBEE
BEZELBEE
MATEETF RS

R2019% 128318

37. HERSRBRMEE(E)

(b) BMEEFHELZAESE:

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
Interest-  arising from
bearing securities
bank and futures Lease Bullion
borrowings broking liabilities loans
#BER
HERLELE
ZitE B4R
FEBTER RITER HESE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TR TERT
765,722 200,000 - 970,140
- - 1,058,109 -
765,722 200,000 1,058,109 970,140
170,827 80,000 (655,508) 290,976
- - 956,487 -
375 - (4,616) (11,481)
- - 46,310 -
- - (46,310) -
- - (54,571) -
- - - 224,208
= = = (70)
936,924 280,000 1,299,901 1,473,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
(continued)

2018

At 1 January 2018 R20184F 1A 1H

Changes from financing cash flow BEIR S RERE
Foreign exchange movement GNP B

Net gain on bullion loans designated as 1§ A AFEB EEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss EeBEEFNRE

Net fair value loss on bullion loans EEREATEEEREL
designated as at fair value through EeBEENATER
profit or loss FEE

At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H

Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities REEHR
Within financing activities BMEEBA

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$964,298,000 and HK$956,487,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings (2018:
Nil).

37. HERSREBRMEE(E)

(b) BMETHELZEEREY: (HA)
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
arising from
securities
Interest- and
bearing bank futures
borrowings broking Bullion loans
BH K
e ESE
ZETR
HRBRITER RITER EEBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
942,203 60,000 1,069,873
(175,561) 140,000 (91,664)
(920) - (25,611)
= = (11,811)
- - 29,353
765,722 200,000 970,140
(0 HERSRHARE
FAGEREREBRNEER SR
HAazEmT
2019
HK$'000
FTHERT
101,488
655,508
756,996
(d) EEFRERS

FRAEEREFHELTIEN
FHEEENRMAEAENIERS
# 00 5 Bl A 964,298,000 JT I
956,487,00078 (20184 « &) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

38. Commitments

(a)

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

BATA) - BREME
UE T e

Contracted, but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment
Capital contributions payable to

a joint venture (note)

(P aE)

Note:

In 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with independent third parties to
form a joint venture. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in March
2020, the Group did not proceed with the joint venture agreement.

(b)

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018

The Group leased certain of its office properties and retail stores
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties and
stores were negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

FE%

(c)  The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced
as at 31 December 2019. The future lease payments for these non-
cancellable lease contracts are HK$24,537,000 due within one year,
HK$100,631,000 due in the second to fifth years, inclusive and

HK$3,563,000 due after five years.

EBIIBE—RKRELE

A
(a)

38.

(b)

F_EZELIF(BREEMS)

(c)

REEPNIRE B REE AR N
T

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
19,242 68,728
453,033 460,931
472,275 529,659

GEE
R2016%  AXBRBIFEHTLA
AR —RABLE - BEMELRL -
2202043 A4 R EEAREUAE R
=3

iz °

R2018FE12A3MBEWEZERAY
AIE

AEBNRERORYREETH
AEMERTEREH -  HWEWE
REHHRSEER ER—E 1+
Fo

M2018F 128318 "EE R
BRI HGHEE RN 2 R REH
EFURLE BRI

2018
HK$'000
THET
629,272

601,631
9,642

1,240,545

M2019%12A318 A&EE A
MARBHNESBHERY - ZET
AREMNEES NN AREEFHIE
A—FNEIHR 24,537,000587C
£ =2 % R F 5 # /100,631,000
Br(BEEEME) R AFRKEIH
#)3,563,00078 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o)

MRS B

39. Connected and Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (a)
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with connected and/or related

parties during the year at mutually agreed terms:

Nature of transactions

REME

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(2018: rental expenses for the lease) of
a retail shop
ﬁ?f%EﬁZE%%QEZﬁ%
(20184 : HEMX)

Lease payments for short-term leases
(2018: rental expenses for the lease) of
quarters of the Company’s Directors

MERARREEFEE EHHEZHE
HIA(2018% : &%)

Consultancy expenses for the provision of
image consultancy services to the Group

A AR 55 B R T R B R AR5 2 B T ) 2

39. BEALRS

ATEARS

Relationship 2019
B HK$’000
THET

Certain Directors of the Company
who have beneficial interests
in the property
AREETEENZMEES
BamiEn 3,769

Related companies in which certain
Directors of the Company have
beneficial interests
ARRETEFRREaERZ
BRELT 900

A related company in which family
members of a Director of the
Company have beneficial interests
ARE— %%%%ﬁxm%ﬁ
EantEn s flE 448

Commission fee for sale of consignment stock A Director of the Company who

Ih

B R ZHEM:

k>

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

has beneficial interest in the
consignment stock
KRR —REENTEFERE
BafEm 115

RERAEAMBIMEELEIF
2R 5 R -
R A TR KRR 2 R

$‘EEIEA¢W

2018
HK$'000
TET

3,780

840

2,026

371

LitFrEREALR S MERK L
MRAE+NAZEFRREZHER

BRG e LR BBEETRE
F1AAGEER R R FEE

approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. % AERBIREIEZHE
Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group (b) AEEFXEEEAEME

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees

Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

FRENRENZR
SRE BN RENARAH
TEFZEH W

EHEANE 2

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

7@% 1,090 1,022
He Mo 36,497 34,644
EH&J‘&’HE@ GIEAT 2,989 10,572
%ﬁ%ﬁZ%k%ﬁi - 690
RIS FTEIER 1,133 1,187
41,709 48,115

BEEHeE—PHBIANGAUK

WEMTS o

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AEESEBRBRAERRA

2019 4 ¥



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

40.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019
Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

MBEE

BREAMEECMBERE

REARRTFEESALL
PEMENMBEEE

FEW AR

BEIAERRES R
RX

BEERNUE - ARk
gg&ﬁ@ﬁ%%%%

AT BES BRSO
é{é

FESRIA
REERERS
BeRERES

MBEE

JEFBE TR
EHELEEREEEY
FEfHER K
BEEHEMBEMERR
[EFtBE ZBITSAE
MESBMIA
FHERITER

40. RERSEZSWMIA

T

Financial assets

Financial assets

RESHAR - Rz eRTAREEN

at fair value designated
through profit at fair value
or loss - through other
mandatorily  Financial assets comprehensive
designated at amortised income - equity
as such cost investments Total
EAVEE
AR  EEARLYEME
MBEE ZBEEA FTAHMEERS
- BHEE 51 BRHY HHBEE N
BUER BHRE - RORR At
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T FHL T
- 206,340 - 206,340
- - 935,599 935,599
- 915,804 - 915,804
- 585,230 - 585,230
- 56,728 - 56,728
13,394 - - 13,394
145 - - 145
- 443,797 = 443,797
- 1,028,326 - 1,028,326
13,539 3,236,225 935,599 4,185,363
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
BATEESFABRNEEEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
R R B RESHER A A .
EERLER BIEEE HReRKEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
- - 116,156 116,156
= - 503,271 503,271
- - 390,356 390,356
- 9,158 - 9,158
- - 1,216,924 1,216,924
1,473,773 - - 1,473,773
- - 1,299,901 1,299,901
1,473,773 9,158 3,526,608 5,009,539

2019 F %k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

40.

Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

2018
Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Bullion loans

HHEE

BREAMEECMBEE

BERRATEE AR
PERENMEEE

FEM AR

BENAERLES 2B
A

BEERNE - ARk
BAREMEENTTH
BE

BRVEES ARSHITE
BE

TEERMTA

REFRAES

RekFR5E

MBEE

FEATRRAK
BELHEREEL L
PR
BEEEMRNERR
FEEtRE 2 MBRE
TESRI A
ATRRITER

BETEES

40. RERIBzERMIA(H)

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value designated
through profit at fair value
or loss - through other
mandatorily  Financial assets comprehensive
designated at amortised  income - equity
as such cost investments Total
BATRE -
5t A  ERARATEE
MHAE BBERA  HARMEENES
- BlEr 5IRE A WBRAE
BRI MBEE - iR E it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET FHT THET
- 197,508 - 197,508
- - 844,391 844,391
- 1,001,041 = 1,001,041
- 1,018,341 - 1,018,341
— 51,148 - 51,148
13,595 - - 13,595
5,555 = = 5,555
- 442,519 - 442,519
= 1,302,527 = 1,302,527
19,150 4,013,084 844,391 4,876,625
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
BAFEEF A BRNMBEEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
PR _ EBMRAA L
¥ RULEE R RHIFEE HReUMKaE At
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET
- - 146,017 146,017
- - 457,010 457,010
- - 287,788 287,788
- 12,405 - 12,405
- - 965,722 965,722
970,140 — - 970,140
970,140 12,405 1,856,537 2,839,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

41. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and bank borrowings due for repayment
within one year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings, bullion
loans and other borrowings as at 31 December 2019 were assessed to be

insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, have been estimated
using the income capitalisation method and net realisable value method.
The valuation requires the management to make estimate about the
capitalisation rates. Management believes that the estimated fair
value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change in fair
value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the

reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on

open market prices of bullion.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2019, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps which are measured based on bullion market
prices and swap pricing respectively. The carrying amounts of the bullion

contracts and cross currency swaps are the same as their fair values.

41.

FTHIAZAFEERAVEESR

REEHR - AREZMBEEREE L
EHEREAFEERS

BEEDFERIRN  EFRABRL
EEZRYERN - B ERNFA - A
BRI EMEEZHFEE - KBF
RELT RehFRRE  BHRN
AR NERCEL RNER  B2H
Hft R R B IHR 2 MR ERA
R—FERIREEZRTERZATERE
HAKREERS  TRMRZETALR
FEHAEIH -

MBEBEERABZATER FRTHRER
BREE  DARTBRNENR ST Z
TAARBZEBAR - B ATEER
ERTATERRR

HEiBEERBER 1 FREBEEZRTE
RZAFEEEEEAERS - AEER
ENRBAGREUER - GERREGET
BBz TAZREERMERITIRGERE
HARRRERE - AEEN2019F12 A
NERETERITER  EeBEERE
EFmE 2 TRORBTES 2 AFE
EESWTHEALTEK o

ERRHREZ A FEEHRETHRE
FE - HEARATEE AL BRER
@I EMBRNRE 2 A FEERAR
ABRCER A BBFEAEHR G - %
BREERREEBHENML LG
BRI ERMELZ 2
FEEERGAUBRRRTEREBA
FEEEHCNEM2EKECHK 18
Al RANBEHRFEE 2BE -

BEeBEENEPFEZATEARE
B ARTEE -

AEFHEEERFZSHRERERES
BESRAGUITEERMITEA - 12019
F128318  THEEeBITAESFIEE
CBMSERTEZECBA Y RI=HE
BT E 2 RX BB - BEEBAIRR
NEBEH REAEEEAFEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

As at 31 December 2019
#2019 12A831H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

EERRAFEESARME2EKS
HZE LMD IR E

As at 31 December 2018
M2018512831H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

EERRIFEEFARBEERE
HZEEmRINIRE

Valuation
technique

e EB A

Income
capitalisation
method

L 'ON-Z:N |47

Net realisable
value method

AREFEE

Income
capitalisation
method

WABARLE

Net realisable
value method

R HEE

Significant
unobservable input

EXBUBEYE

Capitalisation rate

ER{bt=

N/A

TERA

Capitalisation rate

B &

41.

EMIAZAPEERAVEESR(EA)

AT RemITAGEZERBARRIE
MBERS(CBRENT :

Range

EE

3.8% to
4.8%

3.8% 2
4.8%

N/A

TER

3.8% to
4.8%

3.8% %
4.8%

Sensitivity of the
input to fair value

BEHAVEEZHBE

1% increase/decrease

in capitalisation rate
would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$201,000
EAR{LEREM HWD 1% #
HHATEERD, L
201,00058 T

N/A

TEA

1% increase/decrease

in capitalisation rate

would result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
HK$201,000
BEA(CLRIE M, B 1% 1
BYHRAFEERD L
201,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

M2019F12831R°

HERBRATEBETA
Hit 2 mEURasm i 5%
BE

BAFEER ARZ
MHEE

TESRMTIA

M2018F 12 A31H

ETEBRAFEETA
Hith 2 EARES B 7
BiE

BATEE ABZER
IS EE

TESMIE

4. S@MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AFEEER

TRENAEKEERTIAZ A FEEAE

M
BAVEEMECEE

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHE 2 APEETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JERMS BEATEHE EBEAEUER
HE g g
(&A1) (&% 512) (&% 513) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FEx FEx
901,135 - 34,464 935,599
13,394 - - 13,394
= 145 = 145
914,529 145 34,464 949,138
807,104 - 37,287 844,391
13,595 - - 13,595
- 5,555 - 5,555
820,699 5,555 37,287 863,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBRENE

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 41. SRMIAZAVEERATFEESHR(EA)
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DEEEER(E)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are FRERIZZAFEEF2EFHWT ¢
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Financial assets designated at fair value through 15 AR AFEE AL 2 E ke
other comprehensive income: HFBREE -
At 1 January R1A1RH 37,287 38,534
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive REAM 2 ER TR BEER
income (2,823) (1,247)
At 31 December R12A31H 34,464 37,287
Liabilities measured at fair value: BATEBEANEZEE
Fair value measurement using
RAUTEE 2 AT EETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERT 5 BEAUEE EBEAEUEE
BE i i
(#&51) (#R512) (#R513) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER THER THER
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A31H
Bullion loans REeBEE 1,473,773 - - 1,473,773
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4A4F T A - 9,158 - 9,158
Customer gold deposits BEFES 47,098 - - 47,098
1,520,871 9,158 - 1,530,029
As at 31 December 2018 20185128310
Bullion loans E2EBREE 970,140 - - 970,140
Derivative financial instruments 744 @ T E = 12,405 = 12,405
Customer gold deposits BREFE® 39,845 = = 39,845
1,009,985 12,405 - 1,022,390

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities. AkE A3 o

FN UBEERMBEEZRRN R
B2 2 EHERVERGEER  TEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2019 and 2018
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$3,996,000 and HK$3,659,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest
rates at 31 December 2019 and 2018 would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit before tax by HK$1,417,000 and
HK$4,988,000 respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to the interest rate used
is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax.

42,

BHEREEBEREEK
() HBEBER

AEEZIESRIABERITE
FREBERRITER  HFLH
TAZIZRZIRARBZEH
E8EBT - AREBETEMUE
BENBERBAREEXBERE
£ GRS R B RR AR

AEECRRAREERRHH S
BT 5 2 REATRANE - W SIORE
HAREEHBRABRZEETH
FE -RREETITHEEERESE
EEMBRZBRET MERER
AEEZEEBURETAIE Ul
Bl FHERERMBER

AEESRTIAMELZTE2MR
AMNEERE IERE EEHE
B RBEER - BHERER
FEmERRER EF2EHMLR
BT ER S B ERR 2
R

VI
AEBERFEMBEERARZH
KEBEEHMASNERER - 58
PHREEIBRRAREFPEN M
ARMBREIEARTEN
ERFHN XL - BHAREEA
RESREMNZER

RETIHFREZRME  RER
RBEPRERZEBELEIR
BEEFEER FER2019F K
2018412 A31 B #E i,/ 450
BAEE B2RRD MRS
B B & Al % 73,996,000 T &
3,659,000 7T ° fEFTH H &

BEAE LT ATAREYZR 2
BRT  AEBRAHAFEZ
HEETIBEE -

AEEZHNERBITREFEEE
REMERES - AEBEEET
e h BB EAEERREL]
HERZHEKF - FIEM2019
FR%20185E 12 A31 B N,/ F
DEoEER - 5 R, w A
REBRTATRF 1,417,000 87T
%.4,988,00078 7T © It 24T IR
RBEMRINEZEESBIINE
BEEHRMEN - EAMBEME
MBI DA AEMR AT ER
ZIERT  REER A AN X
ZHRBETBAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42.
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a)
Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and
considers utilising hedging instruments should the need arise.
Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical review
of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and used cross
currency swaps to manage certain of its foreign currency exposures
on significant and recurring future commercial transactions.
Hedging is only considered for firm commitments.
The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with
loans denominated in the relevant currencies.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities) and the Group's equity.
Increase/
(decrease)
RMB rate
ARMER
#n,/ Gi4)
%
2019
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — fifii# 7T i A R K655
against the RMB 5
If the Hong Kong dollar 7T 5 A R EE g
strengthens against the RMB (5)
2018
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens — fifii# 7T 3 A R £33
against the RMB 5
If the Hong Kong dollar ey 7T 54 A R 0
strengthens against the RMB (5)

B¥ERREERERBEE)

B B R 3R ()

FIE @G (&)

A B 2 BRTENIE IEINE R
RZBERATEMRANZMEK-
SN+ AR B BRI R AR AR K
T RRERERZRRALHT
B

SMNE 2
AEBEZXHEBRARIEREE
BEMAENEEBUIN 2 BEE
TZEE - EEERTRERHRE
R R FBETERR - YAAR
XEBIERERABARERIER
REEXDZETINERR - A&
EERBEAREETHR

ARBEZBERBBEEENET
ARBRETAEN - BEEIMER
BNERAIMNEERRT LRAKE
EETHBIBE

TRETRAAE MRS MR 2
ZERT  ARERBERR 2R
Bangfl(REREERAGBLRY
BENEH)HARBERTRES
BEE . HRE -

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity
BRB AT A i
i,/ (Bd) #m/ ()
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TER
4,488 294,460
(4,488) (294,460)
3,303 265,468
(3,303) (265,468)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's
retail sales of jewellery are usually transacted on a cash basis, via
popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed department
stores. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients and wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms within 60 days. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to
its jewellery retail business as it has a large number of diversified
customers. For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale
of diamonds and precious metals, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The
Group's receivables from margin clients arising from the ordinary
course of business of dealing in securities are secured by the
underlying collaterals. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy
to minimise the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed
up by senior management.

42. HHEREERBERBE(E)

(a)

MEERER ()

ERAR
BURRFNESRPERLEEZ
BUEFRDAREHRRZHF
TRAMELEZIZEERR &
BEBREFREE R BEARRR D I
ERBEEREE - AEE 2K
ETEHERRURS  BBER
ERTREREERHRAMZA
BERAENTRS - AREREESR
FEMBRFETZEEHE—K
W60 H N Z IR (T - R IR
ETEXBRAERENHEL &
TEREREHZEERR - SED
LECBHBES ZRUER - K
SEERERARAEECLE =%
LEMENRS - ARBREAE
EEPESFERELCREARE
FHRFAB B EMESEEM -
NS B im E R R BR R A 4 R AR AR
Bl WRAEEEHBRARERE
BRfg - g5 - A BR AR
BEHEER  BRERERRE
BABRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

Accounts receivable*

Receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking
— Normal**
— Doubtful**

Financial assets included in
other assets

Financial assets included
in prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets
— Normal**

Cash held on behalf of
clients
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

42. HHEREERERBEE)

(a) HEEREZ(E)
=RER (&)
=E /A RFRSEER 4
TERBEAEENEEEE @ 7T
EEEERESEERK  BIEE
BRARKARE HEESEME
B BRITRIZNAHER &
R12A3MBZERPBESEA
it - 2B FAVBEENERER
4(E o
R2019%F12831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
128 RS
EEER 2HEREEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIRR FE2RER FIRR b A% A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx
JE U BR X * - - - 942,312 942,312
EHERAELLES
ZIEWBRTR
—Eg** 319,697 = = = 319,697
- THERE ** - - 711,201 - 711,201
BETEEMEEY
MBEE 206,340 = = = 206,340
BEEBMNZE
H At FEULBR FU
Hib EEMIS
= IERH =2 56,728 = = = 56,728
REFHER:
- AR H 443,797 = = = 443,797
HehEREE
- MR EH 1,028,326 - = - 1,028,326
2,054,888 = 711,201 942,312 3,708,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

42. HBEKREEEERBEE)
(a) MERBER(E)

Credit risk (continued) =BG (&
As at 31 December 2018 7A2018F12A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12 {E A 858
FEBE 2 HEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1HBER F2MEER 3P Bt mE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
Accounts receivable* FEUBR 2N * = = - 1,009,157 1,009,157
Receivables arising from BHEMPECGLES
securities and futures Z FEMBR TR
broking
— Normal** — IEE ** 610,817 407,524 - - 1,018,341
Financial assets included in B &EHEMEE 2
other assets BB EE 197,508 = = = 197,508
Financial assets included BEEBMNRIE
in prepayments, other Hof FE AR TR R
receivables and other Hih B ER I
assets BE
— Normal** — [EE** 51,148 - - - 51,148
Cash held on behalf of REFRER:
clients
— Not yet past due - AR 442,519 - - - 442,519
Cash and cash equivalents  B&KERRES
— Not yet past due — AR H 1,302,527 - - - 1,302,527
2,604,519 407,524 - 1,009,157 4,021,200

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

it The credit quality of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking and financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

* %

A& B A L 77 AT i e MR
RERE - DB RHRESERDN
EHBBENG AP REHE22 -

5 R R R EE 2 R
AEBBEBMKA AR
ERRAMEENRBEEY &
BNAYEARBLIAENHE
EZEERRENRERRARE
B AZERBEECFRE
ERBRIER] T 2EH
BEEZEEEERGAITRE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

42. HHEREERERBEE)

Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HHEBREEE)
Liquidity risk BB LA
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AREFERT#ERSEERES
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBASRBRHKE . AKX
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash EEEEREMESRENRSRE
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to B2  AEBBKNFHZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility FEERERBITEERESZE
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity E N T ST - AR
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group SAHEHERERRGHESENK - &N
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and EEAAREEAA BB AE
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All CERE  BEAREEEADE
debts of the Group as at 31 December 2019 would mature within PR EM RN2019F12 A 31
three years. B AEEMEREAR=EKE
HA o
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end NIPEE K  AEF BB E GFIR
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted EHEEES B - -
payments, is as follows: SR
2019
No fixed
terms of 1yearor  2yearsor 5 years or
repayment/ less but less but less but
repayable 3 months over over over Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years 5years  Undated Total
£
f"E5/2 3R 1EIUT  25EMT SEFUT
REXEE IUT E3EANE  E1ENE  B2EMNL SENL EHR At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TER TEn TERL TR TERL
Accounts payable JERTERR 83,322 32,834 - - - - - 116,15
Payables arising from ERRMERLES
securities and futures LIRS
broking 444,712 58,559 - - - - - 503,271
Financial liabiities included @2 EEHENER
in other payables and REEER 2
accruals e 124026 266,330 - - - - - 39035
Derivative financial fTEeIA
instruments - 8,328 - - - - 830 9,158
Lease liabilites BERG - 153397 458646 467,035 269,074 24,508 - 1372660
Term loans subject to FEXEREZ
repayment on demand EHER
clause 336,040 - - - - - - 336,040
Other interest-bearing bank ~ EAbzt 8817
borrowings ER - 139,486 325,913 288,160 166,193 - - 919,752
Bullion loans EEBRE - 1217378 256,395 - - - - 1413113
988,100 1,876,312 1,040,954 755,195 435,267 24,508 830 5,121,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

42. HHEBREERBERBE(E)

Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BEEBEZE)
Liquidity risk (continued) AEE2 R ()
2018
No fixed
terms of 1yearor  2yearsor 5 yearsor
repayment/ less but less but less but
repayable 3 months over over over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year 2 years Undated Total
EEE TEFAT
fEgs,/ A 38 B3R 2FFUT  SERMUT
RENRER FUAT ME  E1FRE  E25N0E EHR CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT THT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Accounts payable  FEfFBRF 108,618 37,399 - - - = 146,017
Payables arising from &% & H &4
securities and REEZE
futures broking R 434,074 22,936 - - - - 457,010
Financial liabilities & 7EHEA1fE
included in other  FERF K
payables and JESTIER 2
accruals MBaE 86,661 201,127 - - - - 287,788
Derivative financial {74 &R T A
instruments = 12,309 = = = 96 12,405
Term loans subject  ZZR(EE
to repayment on  EHZEH
demand clause B 232,256 - - - - - 232,256
Other interest- Hibar BR1T
bearing bank B
borrowings - 129,579 364,980 215,437 48,368 - 758,364
Bullion loans ESRIEE - 776,202 193,938 - - - 970,140
861,609 1,179,552 558,918 215,437 48,368 9 2,863,980
Equity price risk ROMERS G
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities RinBRERERERNDES 2 ATE
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and ER M EBOKT RERESFEE

the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (note 20) and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 25) as at
31 December 2019. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the listed equity
investments are held for non-trading purposes.

HE B @JﬁﬁTﬁ%Zﬂ o E EH

BOREZ A FEBEXTEHIER
HMEAERZE - AEER2019F

1ANBEYEAEERERT
BEAAEMEZERENHEEE
(3£ 20) RIEAFEEF AEE
W %5 & E (KT sk 25) 2 @B Bk 7
KERMAZBROHERRR - A%
Bz LM ERE AT LT - AR
SR MERME - ABH L™
BB DIHFIEFEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

2019
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REA LM ZEE
Financial assets designated at fair BEAEATER
value through other comprehensive ST AR M 2 E A
income BB EE

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss R EE
2018
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REB LM ZHRE
Financial assets designated at fair EBERERATER
value through other comprehensive ATAR 2

MBI B E

income
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

MBI EE

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures

are monitored by management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2019 and 2018 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$194,697,000 and HK$144,826,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This
information has not taken into account potential financial impact

on other financial statement line items.

mAFEER AR

J&=
BAFEEG ABRR

42. HHEREERERBEEE)

(a)

Carrying
amount
of equity

investments

ROBREZ
SREE
HK$'000
BT

901,135
13,394

807,104

13,595

MEEBEE ()

R B EE (&)

TRETERHREHARZ RHER
B RAEEMEHRTE R AL
AREYERNHRNRERTER
F10% Z8 2 GRAE - LA
ME  "EEREAFEE AR
twEERENPHBEEC AR E
gE‘H&?ﬁi)%%ﬁ@%&‘-‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi%

Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
BB AT M,/
®m,/ W D
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FEx
- 90,114
1,339 -
- 80,710
1,360 -

B n (B 152 5%

AEBNEHERE  BRESE
Em BEBMSX2RUARE
HHRERTE - ELBERAK
I REH AN B 2 B IR B AR T 7
FE - BREAmERER A%
EERECBEEURESEAL
EESMIE  UWRESELBE
BRBHE T B S EBRARE -
E@E@Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%t@%ZWﬁ@

BEEELER  ESBEBMER2019
E %2018 12 831 B M, H
D10% » B2 BIE D, mAE
BB FATE R 194,697,000 78 7T &
144,826,000 7T ° 71 E fth &
B TE T NMEAIFIB Y 2R
ZERT REBRAUFAES
BMEZHRENBARE - WEH
ViEEZEHEBTEREBE 2B
BT E o

D]a.k:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and business strategies.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay debts or issue
new shares. The Group is required to comply with certain externally
imposed capital requirements set out in certain of its banking
facility agreements. Additionally, certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures broking, which are regulated entities under
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC"), and
a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required to comply
with respective minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC
and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings, interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking and bullion loans. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity B

BARRRHLE

Gearing ratio

42. HHEREERERBEE)

(b)

BEXER

AEBEAER 2 T ZABRRRE
AEBRBEQERB R L
FREZEAL X  UHEER
REMR 2 BEE

REBIRCEAR N R EK R 2 &
HEBEEALERE  UHHEELH
B o BB ABRENER K&
B ARRRRERT RS - 18
MEEEEBELBETHR - AEH
BETHEETROIBERZEHZ
ETIEBRRBRTE o 1o - BHTFH
BRRREEARPERLLERL
BEAEFRPEERERLZE S
((BEGFMEIIHAEER U
R—FRMBRBASRELZFHZ
28 ZEAREBRTEEERS
REEFLERIBEAXEERS
Feo RNE E2019F K20184% 12
ANBLEMEEE  ZEWBA
RIETEEeRSREESLRE
Bz &EELRHTE - HE2019
FK2018F 12831 IEF &
REFERER BIZ - BURSIE
i@ 28 o
REBRERNBRELXR(BBEE
SR BErEER - BEH
EHBRITER BHERS
KREEZFERTERRESLEE
B BESBEARTESFEA
BEERZERD - AEBZHK
REBERNARBL REFEAEK
FoRBERARCERARBL RN
—F:

v

B ome

iy

W
A

\

3

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TET
2,690,697 1,935,862
10,632,385 10,418,937
25.3% 18.6%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

43. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting periods.

Assets
Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from
securities and futures

broking

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Payables arising from
securities and futures

broking

43. HEHEMBEERUBEE

TR2NBEBRTEBORZ 2B
Bt -

2019

Gross amounts
of recognised

Net amounts of

financial ~ financial assets
liabilities presented Related amounts
set off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
Gross amounts statement statement AERGEHBMARTHEEEBREE
of recognised of financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
REEEHH REERHE
VgL e
BER B#2ERA 2Rz 0% BEA
BREEAR I pek e EEFH SRIE RefEAm #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TARL THERT TR THR TAR
EE
RWER 915,810 (6) 915,804 - - 915,804
BFRAEER
EEZRN
ER 643,089 (57,859) 585,230 - - 585,230
1,558,899 (57,865) 1,501,034 - - 1,501,034
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amounts
off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
of recognised statement statement KERGENEMRRRPEE2HBELE
financial of financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REEHH REREHHE
VgL HRRR
BER B2 BER 2Rz BEA
IRERER REEER SR $RIA REERT k|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TARL TR TR TR TARL
&
RSN 116,162 (6) 116,156 - - 116,156
ERREEAR
EE R
B 561,130 (57,859) 503,271 - - 503,271
677,292 (57,865) 619,427 - - 619,427
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

43. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

43. EHEMBEERMBAEER)
2018

Gross amounts
of recognised

Net amounts of

financial financial assets
liabilities presented Related amounts
set off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
Gross amounts statement statement  RERERAHEAMREPEE BB E
of recognised of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
PRSI KR8
HRKT HRKS
BER BHzERER ERE BER
HHEERS ke ReER BERE ERIA BeAm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TARL TEL TEL TATL TAL
Assets BE
Accounts receivable  JEMERF 1,001,338 (297) 1,001,041 - - 1,001,041
Receivables arising from &% i && 4
securities and futures  E4 2 el
broking i 1,056,745 (38,404) 1,018,341 = = 1,018,341
2,058,083 (38,701) 2,019,382 - - 2,019,382
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets set presented Related amounts
off in the in the not set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
of recognised statement statement RERGANBRARTHEEAELE
financial of financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RREE% R B
RKS AR
BH#R i BER ERZHB BEA
B aREeS HBAESER AfEFE ERIE BeERT e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL THEL TATL TAL TAL
Liabilities =
Accounts payable IR 146,314 (297) 146,017 - = 146,017
Payables arising from  FHRARLL
securities and futures 4 2 FER
broking B 495,414 (38,404) 457,010 - - 457,010
641,728 (38,701) 603,027 - - 603,027
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

44,

45.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative amounts in
the consolidated financial statements were not restated and continued to
be reported under the requirements of the previous standard, HKAS 17,
and related interpretations.

Event after the Reporting Period

The COVID-19 outbreak in recent months has had a significant impact on
the economic activities in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group's
jewellery retail operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China were also
affected with temporary closure of certain retail stores or adjustments
to operating hours. Given the dynamic nature of the circumstances, the
overall financial effect of the above cannot be reliably estimated for future
reporting periods of 2020. Management will continue to closely monitor
the development and evaluate the impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance.

44,

45.

HEEH

MG AT BRENE 2.2/ - AEEF
BB R RRNERRE BT HiRE %
Bl 165%  WMN201951 1B ER -
BEWTE  SAVEREOLESEL
EBY| B EERB LA ERRNE SR
A 17 REBERENERER -

BEMRBE

BA#EA  2019BEMRENEEHE
BMPEAENRELIHELTEAY
2 AEEEERNPEAENKETE
EBBXIETEREERBREE XA
WP E - ERBERNFERILE  B2F
A S At B 1R AE 2020 F R AR M E
HANERHKTE - EEEREEZY
BIREFRYAEHEBEMBARME

= L B
BT E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

46.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

BX
g%

FRBEE
i RIEYNGIP 3

RBEE
SN
RehERHAS

BRBEE

REBAE
Hith AR R BRI R
PR BIA

BRBRE
RBEEFR
EERE
i
ERITRA
i ()

BEs

Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Director

46. ADFEHBMRRE

BRARRANBERR M BRRNKZE

BHAT -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
3,143,162 3,134,526
335 324
2,424 1,728
2,759 2,052
7,514 7.393
357 139
7,871 7,532
(5.112) (5,480)
3,138,050 3,129,046
169,359 169,359
2,968,691 2,959,687
3,138,050 3,129,046
B
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREME

46.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued)

46. ARRMBMRRE(H)

Note: BEEE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARRlEEZHENT
Share
Share option Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
RHEE EBRERE BABRH R F &&t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET TERT FHET
At 1 January 2018 71201841 H1H 1,051,502 13,615 975,582 892,919 2,933,618
Profit and total FRRMNREE
comprehensive income W 4aE
for the year - - - 401,595 401,595
Issue of shares upon R IR IR TR
exercise of share options TR, 8,854 (1,329) - = 7,525
Equity-settled share option — #EzS#%EHE 7 BT
arrangements ZHE - 3,086 - - 3,086
Transfer of share option TR Lt B G e e e
reserve upon the BBRERE
forfeiture of share
options - (121) - 121 -
Dividends declared and paid RSk & &t
during the year RE = = = (386,137) (386,137)
At 31 December 2018 20184
and 1 January 2019 12A318K
20191 A1H 1,060,356 15,251 975,582 908,498 2,959,687
Profit and total FRREMNEER
comprehensive income W4
for the year - - - 401,916 401,916
Transfer of share option AR Uk B A A e
reserve upon the BERERE
forfeiture of share
options - (983) - 983 -
Dividends declared and paid NS & & &+
during the year iz 8 - - - (392,912) (392,912)
At 31 December 2019 20194
12A31H 1,060,356 14,268 975,582 918,485 2,968,691

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganisation and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganisation scheme

RARRI9NFEEZBABHBRE A
SEER - HRBEAFEREZEAAT
B EEERKENBARERZGAE

and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

EFEZERE -

RIEAREIGIFEARNE EETER
T BABBAIDKTHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RERMBREWT
47. Particulars of Subsidiaries 47. KMIBARFE
Information about subsidiaries is as follows: MBARZERMT
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
R¥/ ERIZERE N g ] .
=L B ES: L ERUIES BRER DL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HEBRAA AEERRRS 600,000 %71 REZER
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEESHERADA & 5,000,000 7T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
BEE(FR)EEERDA * REARAME,  1,500,000,000 7T REHE
B A RE
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Commodities Limited
BAEEERERAR BB 5,000,000 7T EEex
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Corporate Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERERAA B 1,000,000 7T PEERHEE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China
FEEER(BR)BRAR REARLRME, 10,000,000 AR EBOITE
B A RE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China
FEEEA( LB BRAR Y hEARKAE 10,000,000 % 7T EBREE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
[EEE B AR AR B 15,000,000 % 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Futures broking
BEEHEERAF BB 5,000,000 7T, Mg
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(RBERARES) REERRES 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment holding
BAEEEEERAR BB 250 7T REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FREMBRER
47. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 47. MIBARFE(E)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ri,/ ERITZERES NS
% BN $:1 EITES BRER DL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE i3
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
B A A B RR (B ) B R A A) B,/ P EIARE 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
BEERERR A B 2,500,0008 7T REER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEEERE (PE)BRAR ) 187 G IS B AR
RigE R
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited retail of jewellery
BAEERESTARAA BB 30,000,000 7T RERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
FIEERE (B BRAR hEARAME, 275307,500% 7T KRERERHE
B A B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
N3 23T Tmex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
AEEHE(FS)BRAR Y hEARERME 20,000,000 TARE KRERENHE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
FEEKRE ST (RA) RO * REARLNE 24,400,000 77T REMERAE
B A B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEEKRETRHBRAR ABRBARES 22 50,000 % 7T REBHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
AL B R BER AR DA EBER RS 17T REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBBREMEE
47. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 47. KMIBARFE(E)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ri/ ERIZERE N g ] .
=L B ES:E ERUIES BRERDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
nominee services
BEEREABRAT BB 1,000,000 77T RERE ARB
Chow Sang Sang Property Holdings British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
(BVI) Limited (formerly known (redomiciled from
as Chow Sang Sang Property Netherlands Antilles)/
Holdings N.V.) Hong Kong
REBERANS 30,0003 7T MERE
(BEREZHIE),/
B
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
BELEBEEERAA BB 10,000,000 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BEEBESBRNA BB 10,000,000 % 7T BHRLE
Emphasis Jewellery Company Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Limited
HERKEERAT e 25,000 89T KETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BB IR & 15 3 8 B REARILAE, 1,000,000 7T ARE RERERHE
BRAEMERA* BB
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REERARES 1670 -
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited authentication
BEBEAMEREET LERE LA Bk 100,000 78 7T B REE
The Future Rocks Company Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited*
BB 100,000 77T REZR
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREBERERAT RBEBRES 100,000 7T KEMT
B A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey

MRS B

47.

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

47.

Issued ordinary

B RS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ri,/ EBRIZTERE VNG gl
8 AR R sEff AR A RER DL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE L3
World Commercial Sales Company Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Limited precious metals
AP BITERAT BB 2,500,000 % 7T EoEHE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
B 287 RS
& These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the * WENTREGE A REMEE2SH

law of the People’s Republic of China

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2019

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network

48.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020.

ZENERELE

RELOK G R - 2ok G EEY

REREBOBERERAES—FKKE

DAIEZ

# REZ2019% 12 A31 B IEEERKT

FERKHREZHE

G AMBHRER 2020563 A26 RS

EEMAERBETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2019

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

EER/E a1

72019412 8318

AEERBAOIRYEFENAT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE B SR B A% BEEE BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
B8
# 229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  31,225*% Commercial Short
NEBIE 22957 21E b=y [GES 51
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 2177
MBS L8 326 £ 32855 T E & i,/ B GES i
* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.I.L. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 447 s A
NBEATRERAOE 101 TR 118 BH [EES H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use 1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NEKXTERAI2FT ~ 1HERKE el =l EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s.ARP. &
EREEHI9M 1 EARERE 5.B.ss5.2 HA F=E H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use 10,836* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
FUEEREGE 23158242  3HEA KRB & - 44 - el P =l ES 2
512N 612 A
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 35155 C, Own use 38,440 Industrial Medium
1/F, Unit A6, 2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, D&F
10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
BESILIE489E 4015 AE 1B AT - A2 B I H

A3 A4 A6 A8 AT1-A13FE 22A6E -

BEAMERIVEAE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2019

FrismEFHE
R2019F12 A31H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE HER SR Rz BEER EE ik
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFHR)
Hong Kong
N
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No.  K.L.L. 10223 Rental/own use ~ N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
MR TEIE 107 2 10957 i LZIEM B 7 ]2 Gy gs)ii TEA B H
2258 R EE s 26 J 57 5%
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208  Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
BOEEHIS4E 164 FEZHMEBI625% 178 il B &
B
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s AR.P. Rental/own use  9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NERBHE691 E 6935 T =318 a8 m EEES s
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
MATHBILRK 85 208 A [HES o
* Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NEEATEFEA28Z 43053 T B4 E)E [GES h
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
FRAEERETOE 78T BE 8A [EES e
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial Medium
350 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
BABLBE 350 LH AT 3055 A Hi [HES q:
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2019

Description Lot Number

fES R

Use

A%

FrismEFHE
R2019F12 A31H

Gross
Floor Area

BEEEA

Type
ek

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
KB

Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan 100100-047
Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREGLUTIREES EHBREESIL
BREEENAES01E

Own use

=

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

1,010

Residential

Medium

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun 154077-014
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BREFHLTIEERGHABNERR
B TRER B A

Rental

HE

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

I%/m%

Medium

S

Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150 134092-003
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BREFHLTIRERKREBER 1509
EBEAE1HZ

Own use

8A

1,906

Commercial

GRS

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2, ~ 2310-7-50
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMHAIREHAETE 1005258
BENEZTESBE16E

Own use

B8R

23,686

Commercial

GRS

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201, 2310-7-50
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBNTRIEEHABA 100528
ENBRESE 28200 201 FE

Own use

8M

N/A

Car park

B

Medium

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, 10501060004-17
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province

PRAE TR =R ELEE 1 R
BB BE 16 /8 1601 £ 1602 F

Own use

BH

Commercial

[EES

Medium
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2019

Description Lot Number

fES R

Use

A%

FrismEFHE
R2019F12 A31H

Gross
Floor Area

BEEEA

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
DY

Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement 10501060004-17
and Car Parking Space No. FO61,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province
PRIGE PEZ T =0 7 2 FB FE B 1 SRR P2
BBt T 1 EEEDRO105REAA R
T2 EEEFE 06T SEEN

Own use

B A

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

N/A

TEH

Car park

B

Medium

No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town, 164084-189
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

BERAFHLUTIEERGAAN R4 IR

Own use

B

583,225

Industrial

T%

Medium

Taiwan

B

Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. ~ 0568-0000
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.

FERBESESIITHEERZREE
215071228

Own use

B

6,847

Commercial

[GES

Freehold

KA

Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
hERBESESIITHEERZREE
215 T 58 132 & 133 5REEfL

Own use

B

N/A

Car park

Bl

Freehold

KA

Location of branches
DITHE

* Saleable area
AEEERE
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2019 interim results: 28 August 2019
2019 interim dividend payment: 24 September 2019

Announcement of 2019 annual results: 26 March 2020

8 June to 11 June 2020
(both days inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting: 11 June 2020

17 June to 19 June 2020
(both days inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2019 final dividend payment: 26 June 2020

Share Information
Stock code on The Stock Exchange of 116
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2980-1333

Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department

27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683

Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

BRERE

%A

NM2019FHEESE . 2019F8 A28 H
IEE2019FEHmEARRS © 2019 9H 24 H

NW2019F2FEE . 2020F3826H

=YD B 202066 A8EE
BELFE 67118
(REBFAE) : (BEEEMX)
BEBAFAE 2020F6 A 11 H
FEPERAD B 20006 A17HE
BRFE 6H19H
(REARRE) (PHEEEMX)
TEEE2019FREMRE © 20206 A 26 H
RBER
REBBMAERSFER 116
REZ RS
BFEEEN 1,000 A%
BREROGBFETAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

EEROBFELIE
BEXFESE AT
EBEFRBR1835%

BP0 541

B|ah 0 +852 2980-1333

BH : +8522810-8185

B - is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REEBR

CEEHBH

BENERDE

KNG 2718

B +8522991-0366

BE :  +8522730-9683
BH :  ir@chowsangsang.com
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